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AGENDA 

A. Disposition of Minutes for Meeting Held December 1, 2021 

B. Old Business 

C. Committee Item 

1. Discussion Items 

C.1.a. = Tab 1 a. Audit Matrix Open Audit Recommendations Update 

Presidents' Suites 
Kilcawley Center 

This matrix tracks the progress of the implementation of recommendations for 
improvement or correction made by internal and external auditors. 
Kelli L. Miller, Former Director of Internal Audit, will report. 

C.1.b. = Tab 2 b. FY22 Second Quarter Internal Audit Plan Update 
Kell i L. Mil ler, Former Director of Internal Audit, will report. 

C.1.c. = Tab 3 c. Anonymous Reporting Hotline Stats Update 
Kelli L. Miller, Former Director of Internal Audit, will report. 

d. Enterprise Risk Management Update 
Kelli L. Miller, Former Director of Internal Audit, will report. 

e. Transition Plan for the Office of Internal Audit 
Kelli L. Miller, Former Director of Internal Audit, will report. 

f. Update on Search for Director of Internal Audit 
Kelli L. Miller, Former Director of Internal Audit, will report. 

C.1.g. = Tab 4 g. NCAA Agreed Upon Procedures Report, FY 2021 
Neal McNally, Vice President for Finance and Business Operations, will report. 



C.l.h. = Tab 5 h. WYSU-FM Radio Station Audit, FY 2021 
Neal McNally, Vice President for Finance and Business Operations, will report. 

D. New Business 

E. Adjournment 



AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS STATUS - FY2022 Q2 
P.udl1 Rac.omnwnd;,1I011 Nul1'1ber / Na ma 

Audit 

Date tuued 

Rkk Cate10rv 
Risklhtl 

Oivitlon 

Oti.r·ru1 Dudl,r.f: 

2018-02-04 Risk Assessment And M0111Iorl11g 

Feder JI Gtant Subrcc1pic111-. 

).II 1/l 'J 

,e.,ear<h 

Modernte 

j/Jl/."J~ 

(l()S[D 

JJ/JJ/Z02J 

2018-02·05 Principal Investigator 

Communication And Training 

Re!oh11t'h ( omphdllCt" Aurl1f 

2/11/PJ 

resea,ch 

Moderate 

Academic Affairs 

!/31/:01('1 J1/.lJ/lOll 

OEAOllN~ IIE.VIS(O 

2018-02·10 

2/11/19 

Fmanu.11 

tow 

Pre-Approval Of Travel hI>enses 

Charged To Grants 

Finance and 6us1neu Opecat1on~ 

6/J.0/10ll 

O£AOl1Nf IUVl'SfO 

Summary of Recommendotion 

n,, v,•ltip ,Htd 1111111'•n\1'11t 11rn1 l·dtllt•\ 11)1 \Uhh•11r111•11t 1:',l 

,1•.•,1•\ •,1 11,•t 1I , 111d 1110111111r1111l 

O<.·Vl'IC'ln 101m .. 1, ,,nr,0101: m•11od, lt.lmm~ l<•r rr-:. .rn,1 
1>011•1111.,I !'I'<, t h ,ll 1\ ;11!g1wt1 w11h funrtmr. ,lgt'O! 'Y r111dl.'hlH•', 

1 11•.Ull' fl•{JUla•d l! iUIUOI;\ ·"" nu)ntlnr t•f! Im tomp!t•IIOII 

Summarv of Response Current Stntus Comment 

tlH' ,,Hld t11 ,111l\ At1 011111111H Jlt' c m 1,•11tt\l lm.1ll1u11~ ,1 trn111,1I Jc.)\JI lu, ht.'l'll lfl'..tl nl ,rnd 1111p !1•flll'llh'd lt1 .uld1t'!o', th1\ 

,ull lt•up11..•111 11~~ .,,_.,l .. ,•,111t.'nl PIU\t•~·• li.nt•d 1>.11u .. 1lly nn thl• 1l •ro11111w1'41.it1rn1 IA obl.111,~d .. mi lt.•ll'Wwt'cl NOVl'lllbf"t 

l1•dt>1.1I d1•111m1 ◄.1, ,11mn p.u11,,•1-.l11p Ii,•" p1,1fl1, ,-~ .'O.l 1 1-i,,~ ;.,,.~,•-.!>1lll•n1 011(11111r111 IA ta•ltt.'\11'\ H\r,1•r1 111,• 

do.:.u11w111.1tw11 \)I t!ll",t\l't, UHL1'ln •~ lhe hl..L'11huid •ll •,ub •~11(11111.t\ 111•1•11 1111 p!11 111••111.-d lh•<1'ITllllL"11dit11m1 , lo-.,•cl IV 

, , , 11m•, 11•, l,11l1nc t,, llh'\'I 1111• l t·IIII~ ,,111lu,nd1IHl!I~ ul l hc• ,uh _It)}! qu.,111•1 •4 

,1w,11d Iii ,I I llli~l\l•·lll .lll(I tmwly 111.Ullh •t ! lh•u•lflh•, Ill Ur h 

11! lilt• lu1 '" Ill 011 +· ,Ill" w,11 h,- CIII 11t•v,•lupnwill f1I dt•,11 

, ... ,l .. ,'.11\t•II\ p1,1h,111h 

t.1.,n,1r,1•111t•11t hd1••\lt'' lh,11 1111• ,IUtlll 11r111-. <,111 ht· 

,111"! ,nt1r1lly .ult.ht•\\t·d .l\ ,11t•'..11h ol rtw hu,ng J n,·w 

nu~•1tm ol fit'\t:,lrt h, rumph,mtt• ,ml! 11111ut1\11•-. {ll1 VJn 

.. ,.1mbroucl) ,lnd th•· 11n11lt•1111•/ll,Ulnt1 ol ,UI rqA ',y·,U•/11 

h•11uw111 It•,~', 111,11111,•d 111dud1· l) D1•v;•\op l1,11mn1~ 

m.111•11,1h on ,tw 11-.1· o f !ht• fR,'\ ,oltw,111• ,lnd ,,,1,1hll-.h 

pm1,•d111c.--. tor propo-..,1 ,h~""lop11w111 ,lnd s11btn1\\1011 

(011~1\tl..•lll Wrlh lt."l("JJnl fl:(lUJ l+'llWIII ', .11 Ocvcloo IIJl/llllj: 

stllh•o'. -Nh1,h 1111•,•1 th,• \C lwd11l111j.: llt'l'fh ol 1,1ndrv. ,r.1ff .ind 

-.1ucl••111\ i) D,•..,t•lop ,1 11•ru,cn 1•1•11101: 1)11~ , H w1th1n th•· 

(RA u>hwJ• t• for n1omw11nt: :r,m1111i: 

rt\A Sy11,yti-111 11,unrn1: h 1·, l~•l•n prnHMy focu!. Addn1on,1lly 

,1dv.1n<1•nwn1 .. Jll,Hl1• l,n OR') Wt•h .. tlt.• to lorku1.- 11,lllllllf' 

Ill tlt•t1,1h ,.,, •,1><•(1!!1 ,tll•,l\ 111111, I\ ,monr,omt! 1,1:.k t h,ll will 

t•,;ll-111! Wt•II 1nh1 FY!.' ,rnd futurt• 't'l',11".» 

lndmh· 1J1,1111•. l\(hlU!ll mt_! ,n l h••, (1111111 ,nll11111.1t, ·cJ ,ljlflh,..,,11 Gr.int\ /'t.11n11n111,1~ 11ntl1•1'l,11,d-.111,- d1•\11o• 111 ,11110111,tlt· l'tn11 ... ,11 \'I 1\ \',lr,Ull hu •· • t.-1111,•tl 1w111)(I Nt·w \IJII in J)I.I, ,. 
IIM 111,llkl •.111.·mjl, 11••··••lflht!d .111,l uuly!t'rl to {lt.'lt'rlll!ftt· 

,,p1,u,p11,llo· t 0111•1 ! , ,1, -11 l l m\ 

w(Hk(k1.v 1ou11ne !01 t "lj,t•l\'.t."• lhJICt•il IU 1!• -1111 lumh .-.il;tklk)W ,!llf)ll)\l.tl•. II\ f.UIK Ill 1,llht•• lh,HI lt°l-{1111! «lll fll,, tllt.ll 

Prior Sta tus Comment 

rm.ii 1t•!.11lu11o n h,,, 111•,•11 tlt·l 1y1•1I chi, • 1n -. r,,111113 ~110, r,11t('', 

,,11d ("OVID J ') C n 111p lt•l11lll l llllt!itlh t1, nt1111:•·n1 IHI \l ,l1 frnc. 

,HIii 11•11loh• w.u~ ,n11~11l1•1,1llnn, ll•ntpt11,•I\' 111, •,l\Uf t•\ ,11,• 11\ 

p l .11 1• ltl \ I Wll!!llic.•11 , 1-1c1•,1,!hl tilltll tmf1IL"llll· lll,itlC,11 

ttHllpict1•d 

Ut/'t. ~v ~11•m 11 ,Jlllifll! hJ<, ht·t•ll lht• ft)\ (I', Th,-. hd\ !Jt-t"'n 

c:onth1C1NI lll\OlljllOCltOn w 11h 1t)!I (!Lil ol n1•w S.ySh'lll 111 

module fo1m,11 lh1\ t> .tn 01+~o+rw 1,111,k lhJI wilt ••-1'-'nd , •.di 
111tn I Y !.~ ,mcl lulmt• ,., .. ,J,11, 

1·,un11t:1111•f\T f\ n.,11.on v,u,111, , .... ,11111 t nv1n 1m11l11 .11,orh 

l Oll111lU~• HHl1•1J y !lHlt'lt•!.S. l ,,ll!l.'1 d,t lt:'~ tOll!m:;t.•111 tlll 

,J,lltlllt! ,Hltl l t'IHOlt· \\l,ld 



Audit Re-c:cmn"'nd11t k>n t~u,nbt!r / N11mf' 
Audtt 
0 .. 1• t»ucd 

Rklt0111r 1,c,,y 
Rht,,,le\'ti 

Oivfuon 

2018-02-11 Elooronic Research Admin istra tion 

Svnem 

f<l!St-.uch (ompl1.0XI!' fnut1t 

l/11/19 

re~a,ch 

Low 

6/J0/1011 

DCAOllN[ Rn1t'i(D 

2020-0 l ·0l 

02/1/1!0 

rinanc,al 

tow 

Pohcies And Pro cedure s 

Stude nt l xpt>11tnc.r 

6IJO//dJ.J 

PI.NOl/',GUO~ 

2020-01-02 Tra inmg Ove n 1Rht 

02/1 / /J.0 

Academic Affa l,., 

Low 

Stude nt Experte n<.e 

?J.,l/10](1 6/J0/JOlJ 

O N SCHCOUl [ 

2020-0 1·03 Ac1lv1tv M;rnagement 

Acil'1Cm!C Aff,Hri 

Low 

Sun1m.1rv of Recommendation 

lx.'vf'k:J;) a fo,m"I unpl('lll('Ol,ltlOII pl,111 t o, I IH' rRA ~V~lt'IU 

,ohw,Jrt' to l!'n.tb'e ,1pprop11 ,tr- 1lVt·1sich1 ,ul(l n1.111Jf!t'rn(•UI 

n! the p101ect 

llpll., h• p , 111· h •~ 10 ,ld d u• \ ', 1111,111> 1,11 m ,111.1,?••m••I\I 

f t"tJIIII t•llit· lll , tl~t!Udlll(! 1,ll. •,l,1IU' ,u 11H1!ll ll1f' l <lttl t 'III ',. 

t1·t1,1d k,,, p!II~, ._,Jnl1,11 ! 1,,q,1111•11,,•1!1 lundulf( ,11,•1 h.rn1.,,11,· 

,mtl uru, ••t!UH',. d!\l llll'i.Pll•t•I\! u.nh()I~. ,,_i"lt-llr',' ,Ii I ,1unt ,llltl 

11ll -, .1111pu-. l, ... 11 ..ill"llt,111\ 

Summary or Resoonse 

f\ v1Jblr (RA w'>t l'm w,,!> 1d1•nt1hed ,tnd purrhJ\"ct. 
tiO\'Nv._.r_ tlw vt'ndor \Wnl O\ll of business, ,end~• 1ng !he 

wl<•ctt•d pl,Hfo•m 1mpr.,ttical fhe, Office 01 Rese.urh ha\ 
ht•gun th,: pron•'>'> t.'f t•v,1lu.1tu1g al1~rn,,11ve sy'>h!IIIS and., 

l)Olent1,1I (RA wst.,•m h., .. bcN1 id,.nlified Tho,;> procuro.?ment 

ol t tw '>','Slt•ITI IS l').pt!<..ted m l\t CIUJlt\!t !020 .tnd 
1111plc-1111•nt.llJOll WIii follow 

Current Status Comm ent 

\y\tem lt.J'> bl>t•n pu1ch.-w1J .1nd 1\ lk'IOJ.l 11tih1<>d by ,1 lin11ted 

number of users I here ,Ht• still ,;om~ 1,;~1es that ,11 f! beinc 

JdchMst>d Wicf1• d1-.u1butt0n dcl.lyNl wlu!t• ~nown 1\su~s 
Jlt' ,,dtht•'l,')l'tl 

110111 h·~ lt.w,, h,•1•11 d1,1l1 ,•d ,111tl \"1t.•11• 111111.xh,u•d ,11 lht• 

\lwli•11111,,1d1·1'1htf) ll1•1,, ,1t ()ll frrtlJV J,Ultl,11 11 l 

llllj)H)Vt• \lllli•--nt nrr.;11u1.1t1on tr llll"l!l ,Hlc1 •'lwr•.t~hl nl 

tr.i111111r. complt.•nct> 
\ '/I!! 11•v11•w .ind 111>n,,1,• tr,111ungd<'lrvt•1v mt'l ho<l<. ,,nrt Pro< t•<lur,•'I. h,l\11• 11.•,•n 1h•v1•lnp,•<I onct will bt• l1npli-.n11,,•n1rd 

'l.i1bJ1·<1 nut11..•1 ,1\ w11I .l.,, momto11ng (omot;.lnet~ w11h t1,u11mR w1ttl tht• ~1udt•nl LP)d,,,,;h,p H1•1le,11 oo r rKl;iy, JJnti.uv / 

fl°CIUt11•11ll'lll\ 

ll1 •v1,·w ,111d 111)(1,,1<' llt•ltni•.,, 1 l., 11h,• 101.•, ,,1111 ll'\f)()fl',lh1h1,.,-, V,J1U 11·'J11•w ,111d u1xl.10• pul1Ul.''> 11.'l'.cHtltnr, ll~L' ol -.r>t1u• .utd 

,rnd r1•m!mcf' 11 .. ,n ,nl' il.'1.l!1-d It, u" ul, .uu 1,u, -.p.u,· p,ovnh- uo,l,11t•c, to \!1111.•nh, ,ldvt~OI '> ,\IHI 11•\r1v,H1oru-.H 

\,\'l'l>•,111• h,, . h,•1•111111<1,11,•d .1111I llt'W 11ol1c11•-. p, ,, .. ,,1111•d cH 

\lml1•111 lt•,ldi•f•,lltp Ht lfr,ll on I 1tl1-1V. J,)flU,IIY / 

Prior Status Comm ent 

Syst~m ha .. been pmch,ut.<d .rncl 1:. lwmg u1,h1ed hv ., h1111tr,il 

numb"rof OSl!r\ l he•(' .lll• , t ill !>Onh' 1\o;ut>s l h,11 ,l lP 1..-111J! 

addr('s~ed Y.i1dl.' d1\11 1hu1,011 llcl..1y,•tl w l11!.• ~11nwn •~<;Ui'1o ,l H· 

adrfH!\!>~tl 

N,·w '1.l ,l l f ,11 j)l,111· 111 1h , .,, ,,1, •,1 '>•1~111l 1( .,111 11101: 1,. ,,. 1l1•tJycd 

du,· 10 f0\11> ()11 t ol\111' , t.w,, .1n11 h,1/1111: 1c·qut11•111l•llh 

Ni;:w ~t.11! 111 pl.lft• m th,.,, ,Ut:J \1J:111h, .1111 111n,•1t·\~ 1l,•l.1yi•II 

dul' to lcx-11-. on f,-,11111·-. l.,w ,m!1 h.u1•1r rrq1111pn11·nt -. 

N,•w • !,lit 111 11!.Ht• 111 II," J ft• ,, \1J\t11lh ,111 1111,::1•·" 1l+•l,1y1•cl 

due to Im u, 0.1 ( C'llu1·., l 1w. , ,111 1 11.111111! u•qu11o•1m•11t 



A!Jdl1 Rccomft'IO:nd,t1on Nut'n""'' / N,tne 
/'11drt 
O.te b.u111d 

Rdk OlttJ0tV 
Ffok UtV•I 

DMdon 

Orlp,nJit 0Hcl•~ 

Cutr~nt Status 

2020-01-04 Travel Management 

SHJdl'nl 0 11i,m11.11i0n,;; {\udit 

01/17/20 

Academic Affairs 

Low 

Student Experience 

s.111m;o 6/J<J/JOll 

ON SCh[OUlf 

2020-01-0S Cash Account Signers And CJsh 

llandling 

\ 1ud~•III o,r,,"lll,i\tofl~ ,'\t1tll~ 

IJ!/1//?() 

~manoal 

LOW 

Student [ xpeuenct> 

.v.n,r.it 1/Jl/Xlll 

ON ~ •1£0ui r 

2021-01-03 MonitorinK Com1lll;ince With VSU 

Policies 

9/J0l]0 

human 1es01uc e s 

Moder:ite 

AcademK Affair~ 

7/]l/'Y.}2l 6/J0/1011 

O[AOWU REVIS(O 

Z021·01·04 Affiliated orci\n iL:tt1 on Policv • 

Fr iends Of nich Center 

9 /10/20 

N/A 

ClOSEO 

Su111n1:,ry of Rcco1umond.1tlon Sun11norv of Rc.iponse Current Status Comment Ptlor Status comment 

Proec.•dures h.w,~ l>t•t>n 111)(1.ttt•d .ind d up,1111111-111 s 1.1lr 1,.,1ned N1•w -.1,111 m 11l ll1' 1111h1, ,11,-., S1r.n,hc ,,111 p1oc11•-.s: c!el,,vi:d 

on the::i.t- 1e.1u11~menh. 11l>wt•vc1, ,uklu,on., l ll>ltow u11 d 1w 10 t o~ 11:i. 011 C'(lllul':. 1 ,,w, ,1n11 h,111111: 1cqu 1r,•m cn1s. 

1 l,111' 1 r,)I.•, , ,11,11,•,1••11-\lh<!,1,;•\ , ind 1110111 !11111\1111lll.lll4 1· 

Wlili p<ilk 11". lt•l,il••d ltl l,1\11 ,tfllllllll \•j'.11••1\ 

,,1-1,11~ 111;! 11, 111111,: ,lll orr.,u111 , t1o<i-.. 11110 ( 1Jn1otr,ui.: t' .Viii 

( fltlH1,11111, ,11,, w11h 1dvt\lH\ 1t•f!,.rd111$! thh pol!r·.- ,\\;o 

,l,•v+•klo I Hlll!l(}tU'III (,1 ,11 ,111;.1l 1t."r,1,11 .1tH;n lo dn•.1:tru•r, f 

, ,,rnpl1.)111 •· •n1t11 .11 t ount ~1r.n,, to,v pt1!1i It"~ 

\;l~IRC, i>IJl.t' tO t'llSUfl' bt•'.>I (llJctk_l•\ ,u,J COll',ISl~IH.y 

lnlo•nMlmlt h,,._ t1o•1•11 ,t(llh·d tu th•• 1thni.01 ,1pp,rn11t111,•111 

!••11,·r ,lllfi t\ m, l11d1•0 111 ,,,•wly d,•v••lo111•d f·n1ru 111 pol , V 

Tin.u,, 1.1 ! ,l(.\{\UI\I t••~·1,•w .,1111 ·-•1-i11...11w,· .,utrhllll\l v,•11111 .111111 

•1~I0011;J1U/,lh1.i11 l>'f t".:l)ll,<h1lll p1,l(:t-'\' 1•· lot '0!/·.1 t 

I rh.1111 I' <.OIIIPhHu,· WUII Y"iU 1~111(h•\ v,.1 11,lln!IIP, Plll\ t">'H'!> R" ii CN1l 1•1 ;\U11'im (RCA) ,Hlrntm'ilr,11101) wd! r,•v1t.•W rm rent Dr J fl dOllJnl('ntS hav1.• llt't•n :i.uhrn1111•d It) II\ .lthl HII 

,ml 11•v..-w ,•ncl .,pp11).i,,I •ii Hie t i< ••r1t,•1 ,p,•c ,fr< pol,n,,, ,111d pol,crc<, ,ind prott•dmc:., 1d<• n t11vd~11,icnc1P.~ .1nd .,1•('1.. Y':>U P~·mhn~ r,;111,-11lt.Jfinn .11111 ,1pprovJI hv t\li 

prn, ,•t1111t•~ BOI ••m·" "1v.1 I IM R,ch (t" nte1 ">penl i..:- po!1Ctt>i ,md µrtxedurt•) 

I dut ' '"' .uul ,0!01111 ,I\ I ll ·••l,Hl•lll',h!p h, •t wc•,•1, lJ rll\ll'l ',l !Y, 

Hith 1,, 1•1111•1 .11111 I 11P11tl', I ~••1 111+• ., Fl.11•111tH,u111um 111 

1\1:11•1•11 ,1"111 (MlJt,) hl i:u11l1• 1••l.1t10,1,l1111 l1t•lw,•t•11 tlit•~•· 

p,,111••\ I 11.,.111• 1 1tr111111•fll W!lh /\tlll,,11+•d lh1(.H11/,HKln 

l'ohi11•-. 

HlA l\d1111111•,11,1l 1011 w1ll .1dvt."'-.l lt• i(.lr MllA lit>IWt•t.·11 rr1••11th ltt•111~1·d ••l\lt•1•11 1,•11!', ti.iv,· h,•,•11 fu1.1l11,·d 

,rnd Y'.11 whrrh 1llr.m w ith All1l1.1wd n ,i:,m11.,11on l'olw v 

N1•.v •,1.1tf 111111.i.•· 111 1lw, ••••·, "'11•mh, ,,111 11''1'.lt"'-. lid , yt•d 

liL11· f\1 l•to t1•. t11,t ;·,1tm·1, I 1~. 11111 h.,11111: 11..quu,·111••1•1-. 

th,111 d1.h 111n,•n1, h,iv1• h1·,·11 -.i1l11111t h •d hi II\ ,1rnl Int l',·ndtllP, 

r ,m-..1,h,lliolll lflll .1pp1ov,1! hy 1m 

I Ir.di flllt 111111•111 , h ,lv•• lu•1•11 llf•'tl,l1t•!l ,111rl ,H,• h,•1111'. h'Vl!'Wo'd 

1,y Y',ll, 1!11 ht. 1•111t•1 ,,nd I 1w111I• 



A!.Uilt Re<om1,wnda1lon Numb«• / N11mf' 
Audjt 
o.ue IJ..1,uatf 

R~~ aitecorv 
RH\Uf'V~ 

0wt1,on 

~f1MI Dud: n, lf•ffl~d Dcodtl~ 

2021-01..os Flscal Practices And External 

Reporting friends Of Hlch Cen1er 

ftkh Cc•nh•, 

9/JC/20 

NIA 

Univcrnty Relation> 

ti/.•o/;o~~ 

0NSO1[DUl( 

2021-Adv ·0 J Noncompliance h, Purcha~in;i 

Contracts Enh.inced Tra1111111: 

A1lv1-.ory l•u,c hj\1111: ( 1mt1,1r ,,. 

IJ/1 1)/.)0.'l 

f 1na11c1a! 

M oder.l l f> 

CL0\£0 

2021-0:M),1 Restrmed Giving Within Un1vers 1ty 

And Affllialed Organ1t3t1ons 

0,.,1"1()t Ri•!.1111. h•tl fumb 

7/29/20.!1 

F111a 11c1al 

low 

l/3~/},J]J 

NEW 

2022-Adv-01 Noncompliance In f t :ivel Polley 
Upda 1es 

1/1',/;10.U 

F1nancl,1I 

Moderate 

Finance ,md Rustnc\\ Opcra11ons 

Sum mary of Re:coinmendatlon 

Dl>velop p ohch:~ ,HUI PIOCl~Clur~.) Mill !1.a,n ~,aH ,n 0 1(1f'f to 

t.-oharw.e fisc,1111•achre > Jncf e t11:riul 1t•(kll1:ntJ t1f RICh 

Lcnl~I 

Su1ll1lrnrv of Rcsoo nse 

P,0<...,dutt'\ w,U l"k.• devc-!opt"d tu .:tddtt"h !i~.il and report ing 

m,it1f•I ) 

Current Status Comment 

flu• ·, l,• l•·d 1111',S,Qll t)l l'l('lo. LH•• ll•l'llf .,._,, v .,, ... I'> 111 J)H1V1d1• 
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Audit and Assurance: 
Audit Engagements: 

Banner User Access 

Student Billing, Collections and 

Accounts Receivable 

Conflict of Interest 

Facilities and Building~~~~s~_ 

Continuous Auditing/ Analytics 
Open Audit Recommendation Follow 

up 
Hotline Monitoring 

----------

---

Advisory 

Administrative & Planning: 
Administrative 

Audit Risk Assessment, Annual 

Planning, Audit Subcommitte 

Prep and Meetings 

ERM Assistance 

Professional Development & 
Training 
Holiday, Vacat1on/S1ck 

ITotal Hours 

July-Sep Oct- Dec 

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 

42 -

15 
-- ------ --
7 

-- --~---~ 
6 

-- ------ -·~------

150 
---- ---------

so 
- ------ - -- ------

20 
------- ------

290 0 

Youngstown State University 

Office of Internal Audit 

Audit Plan Quarterly Update 

Fiscal Year 2022 
July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022 

July 2021 - September 2021 

Jan- Mar Apr-Jun FY22 to date as of September 30 

Quarter 3 Quarter4 Total Budget Difference 

---·--
42 1.00 -58 

-- ------ -- ----

15 65 -50 
---- --- ------ -- ---- --- -· --

7 0 7 
---------- --------- ------ ------

6 0 6 
--------- ------ ~-~- -- --- ---

150 1.95 -45 
~---- ----- ··------- ----- -- --------

so 35 15 
-- ----- -----------· - -- ---- -

20 1.5 5 
---------- ------- -------- ~-- ---

0 0 290 41.0 -120 
------ . -- --· -- --- -- -------·-- -- --------- -- --~---

------ ------ --- - ----- ------- ------- ~----
115 115 85 30 

-~-- ------- --------- ----- ----~- -·-----

---- ---- ---- ------- - -------

--- ---~-- - -•·---- -------- - ----- -------
55 55 so 5 
--- ------ --~ ------ -- ------- ----- ------

15 15 25 -10 
----------- - -- ·----- ---·-- ---~-

45 45 25 20 
----- ---------

25 25 1.2 13 
------

68 68 34 34 - ----- ----= 
208 0 0 0 208 1.46 62 

6131 6411 _1 __ -2_.sl 

Note: no intern. Search underway. 

prepared: 2/14/2022 

Comment 

research and outso_urcing~----- ______________ _ 

preliminary planning ___________ _ 

preliminary planning __________________________________ _ 

preliminary_planning ________ _ 

•----------------- ·-------- ------



YSU Anonymous Reporting Hotline 
Aggregated Statistics 
Fiscal Year 2022 Quarter 3 

As of 2/14/2022 

Fiscal Year 
Hotline Activi ty Quarter I Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 To Date 

Total 

Reports received 2 2 5 

Closed 

Unsubstant iated/insu fl 1c1ent 
-

information 
- -

Process enhancements noted - -

Investigation I I 2 

Referred - I I 2 

Total Closed I I 2 

Under review at quarte r end 0 0 

Fiscal Year 
Reporting Method Quarter I Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 To Date 

Total 

Ethicspoint Phone - 0 2 2 

Ethicspoint Website I 2 0 3 

Total: 1 2 2 5 

Fiscal Year 
Reporter Anonymity Quarter t Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 To Date 

Total 

Anonymous I 2 I 4 

Not anonymous - I -

Total: I 2 2 5 



Youngstown State University 
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Agreed-upon Procedures Report 
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OHIO AUDITOR OF STATE 

KEITH FABER 

Board of Trustees 
Youngstown State University 
One University Plaza 
Youngstown, Ohio 44555 

8S East Brnad Street 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

IP AReport@ohioauditor.gm· 
(800) 282-0370 

We have reviewed the Independent Accountant's Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures of the 
Youngstown State University NCAA Report, Mahoning County, prepared by Plante & Moran, PLLC, for 
the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. Based upon this review, we have accepted this report in 
lieu of the audit required by Section 117 .11, Revised Code. 

Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected by the 
Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the Auditor of State, 
regulations and grant requirements. The Youngstown State University is responsible for compliance with 
these laws and regulations. 

Keith Faber 
Auditor of State 
Columbus, Ohio 

December 29, 2021 

Efficient • Effective • Transparent 
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Independent Accountant's Report 
on Applying Agreed-upon Procedures 

To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

Plante & Moran, PLLC 
Suite 100 

250 S. High Street 
Columbus, OH 432 t 5 

Tel· 6 tl.8493000 
Fax: 6 t l .22 t.3535 

plartemoran COM 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on Youngstown State University's (the 
"Institution") Intercollegiate Athletics Program Statement of Revenues and Expenses (the 
"Statement") under National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA) Bylaw 3.2.4.17 for the year 
ended June 30, 2021 . The Institution's management is responsible for the Institution's 
Intercollegiate Athletics Program Statement of Revenues and Expenses under NCAA Bylaw 
3.2.4.17 for Division I. 

The Institution has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate 
to meet the intended purpose of performing testing on certain intercollegiate athletics activity. 
Additionally, the required agreed-upon procedures are prescribed by the NCAA annually 
through published instructions, which is deemed as acknowledgement that the procedures 
performed are appropriate for their purposes. The procedures below are specified in the 
NCAA's 2021 Agreed-upon Procedures instructions. No other parties have agreed to and 
acknowledged the appropriateness of the procedures. This report may not be suitable for any 
other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all items of interest to a user of this 
report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report; as such, users are responsible for 
determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. We make no 
representation regarding the sufficiency of procedures, either for the purpose intended or for 
any other purpose. 

An agreed-upon procedures engagement involves performing specific procedures that the 
engaging party has agreed to and acknowledged to be appropriate for the intended purpose of 
the engagement and reporting on findings based on the procedures performed. As agreed to by 
the Institution, for purposes of performing these procedures, exceptions are reported in 
accordance with the NCAA's 2021 Agreed-upon Procedures instructions. 

Agreed-upon Procedures Related to the Intercollegiate Athletics Program Statement of 
Revenues and Expenses 

The procedures that we performed and our results are as follows: 

Internal Control Structure 

A. Related to the Institution's internal control structure: 

1) We met with the Institution's VP of finance to identify areas of significant interest and 
specific agreed-upon procedures related to both internal controls and other specified 
areas. This discussion did not identify any areas of significant interest or any other 
agreed-upon procedures. 

(') PRAXITV 



To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

We met with the director of intercollegiate athletics and inquired about the general 
control environment over intercollegiate athletic finances, the level of control 
consciousness in the Institution, the competence of personnel, and the protection of 
records and equipment. 

2) We obtained the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 and any 
additional reports regarding internal controls, if the Institution was audited independent 
of these agreed-upon procedures, and any corrective action taken in response to 
comments concerning the internal control structure. 

3) We obtained any documentation of the accounting systems and procedures unique to 
the intercollegiate athletics department. 

4) Cash disbursements, cash receipts, and athletic employee payroll are addressed in 
connection with the audit of the Institution's financial statements. The following control 
environment and accounting systems are (a) unique to intercollegiate athletics and (b) 
have not been addressed in connection with the audit of the Institution's financial 
statements. We performed the following procedure: 

i. We selected one game and tested the ticket collection receipting process by 
comparing the total receipts for the game to the reconciliation and documentation of 
the related cash deposit amount with the bank. 

Result: We noted no exceptions. We selected one football game during the year and 
agreed the total receipts for the event, as documented by the Institution's ticket 
reconciliation procedures, to deposit slips of the related cash deposit amount. Since 
there were no gate sales for the game, we selected a week of cash deposits made by 
the Institution's box office and tied general ledger activity to bank statements in order to 
verify the cash deposit process. 

The ticket cash receipt amounts for the transactions were as follows: 

Ticket 

Sales Deposit Deposit 

Event Date Sporting Event Amount Amount Date 

3/6/2021 Football vs. Southern Illinois University $ 13,936 $13,936 3/6/2021 

Deposit 

Date of Revenue Amount Amount Deposit Date 

2/1/2021 $ 960 $ 960 2/2/2021 
2/2/2021 820 820 2/4/2021 
2/3/2021 240 240 2/5/2021 
2/4/2021 3,000 3,000 2/5/2021 and 2/8/2021 
2/5/2021 600 600 2/8/2021 

2 



To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

NCAA Reporting 

8. Procedure: We obtained the information submitted to the NCAA, including the financial data 
detailing operating revenues, expenses, and capital related to the Institution's intercollegiate 
athletics program that was submitted to the NCAA, and agreed the. amounts to the 
Statement included in the agreed-upon procedures for the reporting period. 

Result: We noted no discrepancies. 

C. Procedure for Grants-in-Aid: We agreed the sports sponsored reported in the NCAA 
Membership Financial Reporting System to the Calculation of Revenue Distribution 
Equivalencies Report (CRDE) from Compliance Assistant (CA) or equivalent supporting 
equivalency calculations from the Institution. The NCAA Membership Financial Reporting 
System populates the sports from the NCAA Sports Sponsorship and Demographics Form 
as they are reported by the Institution between May and August. We compared current year 
Grants-in-Aid revenue distribution equivalencies to prior year reported equivalencies per the 
Membership Financial Report submission. We inquired and documented an explanation for 
any variance greater than +/- 4 % in the results. 

2020-2021 2019-2020 

Grants-In-Aid Total Total %Change Explanation of Variance per Management 

Baseball 12.16 11.47 6.02% The Institution offered more aid during the year. 
Men's Golf 5.24 4.68 11.97% The Institution offered more aid during the year. 

The Institution offered more aid during the year; 
Men's Swimming and Di\ling 5.62 1.57 257.96% second year sport was offered. 
Men's Tennis 4.46 4.08 9.31% The Institution offered more aid during the year. 
Men's Track, Outdoor 15.26 13.01 17.29% The Institution offered more aid during the year. 
Women's Golf 5.99 5.15 16.31% The Institution offered more aid during the year. 
Women's Lacrosse 3.17 100.00% 2020-2021 was the first year for the sport. 
Softball 11.70 10.65 9.86% The Institution offered more aid during the year. 
Women's Soccer 11.38 10.84 4.98% The Institution offered more aid during the year. 
Women's Swimming and Di\ling 10.21 9.63 6.02% The Institution offered more aid during the year. 
Women's Tennis 7.70 6.28 22.61% The Institution offered more aid during the year. 
Women's Track. Outdoor 19.67 17.69 11.19% The Institution offered more aid during the year. 

The per student-athlete equivalencydecreased 
Women's Volleyball 7.82 9.51 (17.77%) during the year. 

Result: We noted the Membership Financial Reporting System information provided by 
management was in draft form, and management represented there would be no changes to 
the final submission. With the draft provided by management, we noted no discrepancies. 

D. Procedure for Sports Sponsorship: We obtained the Institution's Sports Sponsorship and 
Demographics Form report for the reporting year between May and August. We validated 
that the countable sports reported by the Institution meet the minimum requirements set 
forth in Bylaw 20.9.6.3 related to the number of contests and the number of participants in 
each contest that is counted toward meeting the minimum contest requirement. We 
compared current year number of sports sponsored to prior year reported total per the 
Membership Financial Report submission. We inquired and documented an explanation for 
any variance in the results. 

3 
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Result: We noted the Membership Financial Reporting System information provided by 
management was in draft form, and management represented there would be no changes to 
the final submission. With the draft provided by management, we noted no discrepancies. 
With the final draft provided by management, we noted several sports did not meet the 
minimum contest requirements due to the inability to hold contests because of the COVID-
19 pandemic. Management represented that the NCAA has waived these requirements for 
the year. We also noted one change in sports sponsored during fiscal year 2021, which was 
the addition of women's lacrosse as a new sport. No other discrepancies were noted. 

E. Procedure for Pell Grants: We agreed the total number of Division I student-athletes who, 
during the academic year, received a Pell Grant award {e.g., Pell Grant recipients on full 
athletic aid, Pell Grant recipients on partial athletic aid, and Pell Grant recipients with no 
athletic aid) and the total dollar amount of these Pell Grants reported in the NCAA 
Membership Financial Reporting System to a report, generated out of the Institution's 
financial aid records, of all student-athlete Pell Grants. We compared current year Pell 
Grants total to prior year reported total per the Membership Financial Report submission. 
We inquired and documented an explanation for any variance greater than +/- 20 grants in 
the results. 

Result: We noted the Membership Financial Reporting System information provided by 
management was in draft form, and management represented there would be no changes to 
the final submission. The total number of Pell Grants in 2020 and 2021 were 116 and 126, 
respectively. We agreed the total number of student-athletes who received a Pell Grant 
award during the academic year and the total dollar amount of the Pell Grants to be reported 
in the NCAA Membership Financial Reporting System to the reports generated from the 
Institution's financial aid records and noted no discrepancies. 

Notes, Disclosures, and Other Procedures 

F. Athletics-Related Capital Assets and Expenditures Procedure: We obtained the 
Institution's policies and procedures for acquiring, approving, depreciating, and disposing of 
intercollegiate athletics-related assets, as described in Note 2. We obtained a schedule of 
athletics-related capital expenditures made by athletics, the Institution, and affiliated 
organizations during the period. We agreed the schedule to the Institution's general ledger. 
We selected a sample of one transaction to validate existence of transaction and accuracy 
of recording and recalculated totals. 

Result: We selected the 2021 John Deere Gator addition for $16,574.44 and agreed it to 
the purchase order and the invoice dated 3/29/2021. We agreed total institutional property, 
plant, and equipment to the Institution's audited financial statements. We noted no 
exceptions. 

G. Athletics-Related and Total Institutional Debt Procedure: We obtained repayment 
schedules for all outstanding intercollegiate athletics-related debt maintained by the 
Institution during the reporting period. We recalculated annual maturities (consisting of 
principal and interest) provided in the schedules obtained and agreed the total annual 
maturities to supporting documentation and the Institution's general ledger, as applicable. 
The repayment schedule is disclosed in Note 3. We agreed the total outstanding athletics­
related debt and total institutional debt to supporting documentation and the Institution's 
audited financial statements, if available, or the Institution's general ledger. 

4 
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Result: We agreed all outstanding intercollegiate debt to the repayment schedule in Note 3. 
We agreed total institutional debt to the lnstitution1s audited financial statements. We noted 
no exceptions. 

H. Excess Transfers to Institution and Conference Realignment Expenses Procedure: 
' ' We requested the general ledger detail and would have compared the total expenses 

reported for excess transfers to the Institution and conference realignment expenses for a 
sample of one transaction if applicable. 

Result: Management represented that this step is not applicable, as there were no excess 
transfers to the Institution or conference realignment expenses during the reporting period. 
We noted no exceptions. 

I. Procedure: Changes in loan, endowment, or plant funds related to intercollegiate athletics 
shall not be included in the Statement. 

1) We obtained and disclosed significant additions to restricted funds related to 
intercollegiate athletics, as well as significant changes to endowment and plant funds. 
Significant is defined as exceeding 10 percent of total revenues or expenses in the 
Statement. 

2) We obtained and disclosed the value of endowments at the fiscal year-end that are 
dedicated to the sole support of athletics. We agreed the fair market value of the 
schedule to supporting documentation, the general ledger and the audited financial 
statements, if available. We agreed the total fair market value of athletics dedicated 
endowments and institutional endowments to supporting documentation, the Institution's 
general ledger and/or audited financial statements, if available. 

3) We obtained and disclosed the value of all pledges at the fiscal year-end that support 
athletics. 

4) We obtained and disclosed the athletics department fiscal year-end fund balance. 

Result: We disclosed significant additions to contributions in Note 1 and all other items in 
Note 4. 

Intercollegiate Athletics Program Statement of Revenues and Expenses 

J. Procedure: We obtained the Statement for the reporting period, prepared by management, 
and agreed all amounts back to the Institution's general ledger. 

Result: We noted no exceptions. 

K. Procedure: We agreed each revenue and expense amount from the Statement to prior year 
amounts and budget estimates. We compared each revenue and expense account over 
10% of total revenues and expenses, respectively, to prior period amounts and budget 
estimates. We obtained and documented any variations exceeding 10% of total revenues or 
expenses. 

Result: There were no variances that met the thresholds for required disclosure. 

5 
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L. Procedure: We performed additional procedures on the following revenue and expense 
categories unless the specific reporting category was less than 4% of total revenues or 
expenses. 

Result: See procedures below. 

Revenues 

M. Procedure: We agreed each revenue category reported in the Statement during the 
reporting period to supporting schedules provided by the Institution. 

Result: The supporting schedules provided by the Institution agreed to the Statement 
without exception. 

1) Ticket Sales Procedure: Ticket sales were less than 4% of total revenues, so additional 
procedures were not performed. 

2) Student Fees Procedure: No amounts were reported for this revenue category; 
therefore, additional procedures were not performed. 

3) Direct State or Other Governmental Support Procedure: No amounts were reported 
for this revenue category; therefore, additional procedures were not performed. 

4) Direct Institutional Support Procedure: We agreed a sample of one direct institutional 
support recorded by the Institution during the reporting period with the institutional 
supporting budget transfers documentation and other corroborative supporting 
documentation and recalculated totals. 

Result: We agreed the direct institutional support recorded for board-approved transfers 
to the journal entry recorded and the intercollegiate athletics operating budget. We noted 
no exceptions. 

5) Transfers Back to Institution Procedure: Transfers back to institution were less than 
4% of total revenues, so additional procedures were not performed. 

6) Indirect Institutional Support Procedure: Indirect institutional support was_ less than 
4% of total revenues, so additional procedures were not performed. 

7) Guarantees Procedure: No amounts were reported for this revenue category; 
therefore, additional procedures were not performed. 

8) Contributions Procedure: We obtained supporting documentation for each contribution 
of moneys, goods, or services received directly by an intercollegiate athletics program 
from any affiliated or outside organization, agency or group of individuals that constitutes 
10 percent or more of all contributions received for intercollegiate athletics during the 
reporting periods. We disclosed the source and dollar value of these contributions in the 
report. 

Result: We disclosed contributions over 10 percent in Note 1. 

9) In-Kind Procedure: No amounts were reported for this revenue category; therefore, 
additional procedures were not performed. 

6 
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10) Compensation and Benefits Provided by a Third Party Procedure: No amounts 
were reported for this revenue category; therefore, additional procedures were not 
performed. 

11) Media Rights Procedure: No amounts "'(ere reported for this revenue category; 
therefore, additional procedures were not performed. 

12) NCAA Distributions Procedure: NCAA distributions were less than 4% of total 
revenues, so additional procedures were not performed. 

13) Conference Distributions and Conference Distributions of Football Bowl 
Generated Revenue Procedure: Conference distributions and conference distributions 
of football bowl generated revenue were less than 4% of total revenues, so additional 
procedures were not performed. 

14) Program Sales, Concessions, Novelty Sales and Parking Procedure: Program 
sales, concessions, novelty sales and parking were less than 4% of total revenues, so 
additional procedures were not performed. 

15) Royalties, Licensing, Advertisements and Sponsorships Procedure: Royalties, 
licensing, advertisements, and sponsorships were less than 4% of total revenues, so 
additional procedures were not performed. 

16) Sports Camp Revenues Procedure: No amounts were reported for this revenue 
category; therefore, additional procedures were not performed. 

17) Athletics Restricted Endowment and Investment Income Procedure: Athletics 
restricted endowment and investment income were less than 4% of total revenues, so 
additional procedures were not performed. 

18) Football Bowl Revenues Procedure: No amounts were reported for this revenue 
category; therefore, additional procedures were not performed. 

19) Other Revenues Procedure: Other revenues were less than 4% of total revenues, so 
additional procedures were not performed. 

Expenses 

N. Procedure: We agreed each expense category reported in the Statement during the 
reporting period to supporting schedules provided by the Institution. 

Result: The supporting schedules provided by the Institution agreed to the Statement 
without exception. 

We performed the following procedures for the indicated expense category: 

1) Athletic Student Aid Procedures: We selected a sample of 40 students from the listing 
of institutional student aid recipients during the reporting period (no less than 10% of the 
total student-athletes for institutions who have used the NCAA's CA software to prepare 
athletic aid detail, with a maximum sample size of 40, and no less than 20% of total 
student-athletes for institutions who have not, with a maximum sample size of 60). 
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To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

a. We obtained individual student account detail for each selection and agreed total aid 
in the Institution's student system to student detail in CA or the institution report that 
ties directly to the NCAA Membership Financial Reporting System. 

b. We performed a check of each student selected to ensure that their information was 
reported accurately in either the CA software or entered directly into the NCAA 
Membership Financial Reporting System using the following criteria: 

i. The equivalency value for each student-athlete in all sports, including head-count 
sports, needs to be converted to a full-time equivalency value. The full-time 
equivalency value is calculated using the athletic grant amount reported on the 
Calculation of Revenue Distribution Equivalencies Report (CRDE) from CA as 
the numerator and the full grant amount which is the total cost for tuition, fees, 
books, room and board for an academic year as the denominator. If using the 
NCAA CA software, this equivalency value should already be calculated on the 
CRDE report labeled "Revenue Distribution Equivalent Award." 

ii. Grants-in-aid is calculated by using the revenue distribution equivalencies by 
sport and in aggregate. (Athletic grant amount divided by the full grant amount.) 

iii. Other expenses related to attendance (also known as cost of attendance) should 
not be included in grants-in-aid revenue distribution equivalencies. Only tuition, 
fees, room, board, and course-related books are countable for grants-in-aid 
revenue distribution per Bylaw 20.02.7. 

iv. Full grant amount should be entered as a full year of tuition, not a semester or 
quarter. 

v. Student-athletes are to be counted once, regardless of multiple sport 
participation, and should not receive a revenue distribution equivalency greater 
than 1.00. 

vi. Athletics grants are valid for revenue distribution purposes only in sports in which 
the NCAA conducts championships competition, emerging sports for women and 
football bowl subdivision football. 

vii. Grants-in-aid are valid for revenue distribution purposes in NCAA sports that do 
not meet the minimum contests and participants' requirements of Bylaw 20.9.6.3. 

viii. Institutions providing grants to student-athletes listed on the CRDE as 
"Exhausted Eligibility (fifth-year)" or "Medical" receive credit in the grants-in-aid 
component. 

ix. The athletics aid equivalency cannot exceed maximum equivalency limits. 
However, the total revenue distribution equivalency can exceed maximum 
equivalency limits due to exhausted eligibility and medical equivalencies 
(reference Bylaw 15.5.3.1). 

x. If a sport is discontinued and the athletic grant(s) are still being honored by the 
Institution, the grant(s) are included in student-athlete aid for revenue distribution 
purposes. 
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To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

xi. All equivalency calculations should be rounded to two decimal places. 

xii. If a selected student received a Pell Grant, ensure that the value of the grant is 
not included in the calculation of equivalencies or the total dollar amount of 

• student athletic aid expense for the Institution. 

xiii. If a selected student received a Pell Grant, ensure that the student's grant was 
included in the total number and total value of Pell Grants reported for revenue 
distribution purposes in the NCAA Membership Financial Reporting System. 

c. We recalculated totals for each sport and overall. 

Result: The total amount of the countable aid from the squad list tied to the amount 
shown on the Statement within $15,000. As the Institution utilizes the CA software, we 
selected 10%, or 40 students. We noted differences between the student's account 
detail and the amount reported in the NCAA Membership Financial Reporting System for 
17 students. We noted differences during the recalculation of revenue distribution per 
student for 17 students. 

Additionally, the athletics aid equivalency for men's basketball exceeded the maximum 
equivalency limits. The maximum grants permitted is 13. The grant total per the squad 
list was 13.18. We inquired with management about the discrepancy for the maximum 
grants and found the reason to be a result of the timing of amounts being recorded in the 
Institution's financial reporting system and the amount reported in the NCAA 
Membership Financial Reporting System. Management indicated that the differences in 
revenue distribution were due to cost of attendance adjustments that were not updated 
in the CA software. 
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To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

The student accounts tested are summarized below: 

Total Contributable Aid Total Contributable Revenue Distribution Revenue Distribution 
Student Tested Recalculated Aid Reeorted Recalculation Reeorted 

1 $ 11,100 . $ 11,100 0.59 0.59 
2 10.400 10,400 0.40 0.40 
3 9,800 9,800 0.50 0.50 
4 15,321 15,584 0.59 0.59 
5 15,063 14,921 0.79 0.79 
6 16,851 16,666 0.84 0.84 
7 24,840 24,840 0.86 0.99 
8 25,455 25,455 0.98 0.98 
9 29,962 29,962 1.01 1.00 
10 10,938 10,938 0.48 0.58 
11 16,943 16,943 0.75 0.90 
12 13,231 13,231 0.59 0.71 
13 12,000 12,000 0.47 0.47 
14 16,000 16,000 0.61 0.61 
15 19,199 19,169 0.75 0.75 
16 20,000 20,000 0.81 0.81 
17 13,087 13,087 0.56 0.67 
18 15,405 15.405 0.54 0.58 
19 15,156 15,156 0.51 0.54 
20 11,800 11,800 0.50 0.60 
21 23,591 23,591 0.83 0.95 
22 27,589 27,589 0.95 1.00 
23 11.745 11,745 0.63 0.63 
24 18,292 18,000 0.80 0.96 
25 12,249 12,249 0.54 0.65 
26 19,600 19,106 0.78 0.78 
27 18,435 18,376 0.92 0.92 
28 7,000 7,000 0.27 0.27 
29 25,000 25,000 0.72 0.72 
30 17,700 17,700 0.68 0.68 
31 17,000 17,000 0.68 0.68 
32 14,414 14,414 0.58 0.58 
33 16,000 16,000 0.61 0.61 
34 20,000 20,000 0.61 0.61 
35 27,121 27,121 1.00 1.-00 
36 11,864 12,346 0.60 0.60 
37 19,559 18,810 0.66 0.75 
38 13,373 13,442 0.45 0.51 
39 18,495 18,236 0.82 0.99 
40 27,012 27,012 1.05 1.00 
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To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

2) Guarantees Procedure: Guarantees were less than 4% of total expenses, so additional 
procedures were not performed. 

3) Coaching Salaries, Benefits, and Bonuses Paid by the Institution and Related 
Entities Procedure: We obtained and inspected a listing of coaches employed by the 
Institution and related en\ities during the reporting period. We selected a sample of five 
coaches' contracts that includes men's basketball, football, and women's basketball from 
the above listing. We agreed the financial terms and conditions of each selection to the 
related coaching salaries, benefits, and bonuses recorded by the Institution and related 
entities in the Statement during the reporting period. We obtained and inspected payroll 
summary registers for each selection. We agreed related payroll summary registers to 
the related coaching salaries, benefits, and bonuses paid by the Institution and related 
entities expense recorded by the Institution in the Statement during the reporting period 
and recalculated totals. We agreed the totals recorded to any employment contracts 
executed for the sample selected. 

Result: We selected five coaches' contracts that included men's basketball, football, 
women's basketball, track, and women's lacrosse. We agreed the financial terms and 
conditions of each to the related coaching salaries, benefits, and bonuses recorded by 
the Institution on the payroll detail. We agreed payroll detail totals to the Statement and 
recalculated totals. We noted no exceptions. 

4) Coaching Other Compensation and Benefits Paid by a Third Party Procedure: No 
amounts were reported for this expense category; therefore, additional procedures were 
not performed. 

5) Support Staff/Administrative Salaries, Benefits and Bonuses Paid by the 
Institution and Related Entities Procedure: We selected a sample of one support 
staff/administrative personnel employed by the Institution and related entities during the 
reporting period. We obtained and inspected payroll summary registers for that 
selection. We agreed related payroll summary registers to the related support 
staff/administrative salaries, benefits and bonuses paid by the Institution and related 
entities expense recorded by the Institution in the Statement during the reporting period. 
We also recalculated totals. 

Result: We selected one support staff/administrative personnel, the assistant director of 
auxiliary services and program. We noted no exceptions. 

6) Support Staff/Administrative Other Compensation and Benefits Paid by a Third 
Party Procedure: No amounts were reported for this expense category; therefore, 
additional procedures were not performed. 

7) Severance Payments Procedure: No amounts were reported for this expense 
category; therefore, additional procedures were not performed. 

8) Recruiting Procedure: Recruiting was less than 4% of total expenses, so additional 
procedures were not performed. 

11 



To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

9) Team Travel Procedure: We obtained documentation of the Institution's team travel 
policies. We agreed to existing institutional- and NCAA-related policies. We obtained 
general ledger detail and agreed to the total expenses reported. 

. Result: We noted no exceptions. 

10) Equipment, Uniforms and Supplies Procedure: We obtained general ledger detail 
and agreed to the total expenses reported. We selected a sample of one transaction and 
agreed to supporting documentation. We recalculated totals. 

Result: We selected a transaction paid on 2/5/2021 for basketball equipment totaling 
$25,057.28 and agreed it to the purchase order, the invoice, and the check. We noted no 
exceptions. 

11} Game Expenses Procedure: Game expenses were less than 4% of total expenses, so 
additional procedures were not performed. 

12) Fund Raising, Marketing and Promotion Procedure: Fund raising, marketing and 
promotion were less than 4% of total expenses, so additional procedures were not 
performed. 

13) Sports Camp Expenses Procedure: No amounts were reported for this expense 
category; therefore, additional procedures were not performed. 

14) Spirit Groups Procedure: Spirit groups were less than 4% of total expenses, so 
additional procedures were not performed. 

15) Athletic Facility Debt Service, Leases and Rental Fees Procedure: Athletic facility 
debt service, leases and rental fees were less than 4% of total expenses, so additional 
procedures were not performed. 

16) Direct Overhead and Administrative Expenses Procedure: Direct overhead and 
administrative expenses were less than 4% of total expenses, so additional procedures 
were not performed. 

17) Indirect Institutional Support Procedure: We tested this with the revenue section -
Indirect Institutional Support. 

18) Medical Expenses and Medical Insurance Procedure: Medical expenses and medical 
insurance were less than 4% of total expenses, so additional procedures were not 
performed. 

19) Memberships and Dues Procedure: Memberships and dues were less than 4% of total 
expenses, so additional procedures were not performed. 

20) Student-Athlete Meals (non-travel) Procedure: Student-athlete meals (non-travel} 
were less than 4% of total expenses, so additional procedures were not performed. 

21) Football Bowl Expenses Procedure: No amounts were reported for this expense 
category; therefore, additional procedures were not performed. 

12 



To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

22) Other Operating Expenses and Transfers to Institution Procedure: We obtained 
general ledger detail and compared to the total expenses reported. We selected a 
sample of one transaction to validate existence of transaction and accuracy of recording 
and recalculated totals. 

Result: We selected a transaction paid on
1

11/24/2020 for N-95 masks totaling $15,850 
and agreed it to the purchase order, the invoice, and the check. We noted no 
exceptions. 

Related to Affiliated and Outside Organizations not Under the Institution's Accounting 
Control 

0. In preparation for our procedures related to the Institution's affiliated and outside 
organizations we: 

1) Obtained from management a list of any affiliated and outside organizations that meet 
any of the following criteria: 

i. Booster organizations established by or on behalf of an intercollegiate athletics 
program 

ii. Independent or affiliated foundations or other organizations that have as a principal, 
or one of their principal purposes, the generating or maintaining of grants-in-aid or 
scholarships funds, gifts, endowments, or other moneys, goods or services to be 
used primarily by the intercollegiate athletics program 

iii. Alumni organizations that have as a principal, or one of their principal purposes, the 
generating of moneys, goods or services for or on behalf of an intercollegiate 
athletics program and that contribute moneys, goods or services directly to an 
intercollegiate athletics program, booster group, or independent or affiliated 
foundation as previously noted. 

2) We requested documentation on the Institution's practices and procedures for 
monitoring the internal controls in place and financial activities of these organizations. 
We inquired of management on the procedures for gathering information on the nature 
and extent of affiliated and outside organization activity for or on behalf of the 
Institution's intercollegiate athletics program. 

3) We obtained and inspected audited financial statements of the organization and any 
additional reports regarding internal controls and any corrective action taken in response 
to comments concerning the control environment that were provided to us by 
management. 

Result: We inquired of management as to whether they had identified any affiliated or 
outside organizations that meet the above criteria. Management provided a listing and 
indicated that the Penguin Club was the only outside organization that had expenses for 
or on behalf of the Institution's intercollegiate athlete program. Additionally, we noted the 
Penguin Club does not have audited financial statements, and the control environment is 
the same as that of the Institution. 
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To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

We were engaged by the Institution to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and 
conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA}. We were not engaged to, and did 
not, conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the 
expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on the Institution's Intercollegiate Athletics 
Program Statement of Revenues and Expenses under National Collegiate Athletic Association 
(NCAA} Bylaw 3.2.4.17. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we 
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would 
have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the Institution and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon 
procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of Youngstown State University and 
the National Collegiate Athletic Association and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than those specified parties. 

Columbus, Ohio 
December 13, 2021 
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Youngstown State University 

Notes to Intercollegiate Athletics Program 

Statement of Revenues and Expenses 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Note 1 - Contributions 

Individual contributions of moneys, goods, or services received directly by the 
Institution's intercollegiate athletics program from any affiliated or outside organization, 
agency, or individuals (e.g., contributions by corporate sponsors) that constitute 10 
percent or more of all contributions received for intercollegiate athletics during the year 
ended June 30, 2021 are as follows: 

Source of Funds, Goods, and Services Value 

Private Foundation Donor A $ 100,000 

Note 2 - Intercollegiate Athletics-Related Assets 

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if donated, the fair value at the time of 
donation. Expense for maintenance and repairs is charged to current expense as 
incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method. No depreciation is 
recorded on land. Expenses for major renewals and betterments that extend the useful 
lives of the assets are capitalized. Estimated service lives range from 5 to 40 years 
depending on class. 

The current year capitalized additions and deletions to facilities during the year ended 
June 30, 2021 are as follows: 

Current Year Current Year 

Additions Deletions 

CIP $ 19,635 $ 

Equipment 86,504 

Buildings 
Building Improvements 436,374 
Improvements - Other 610,834 163,893 

Total Athletics Facilities $ j 153 3~7 $ J63 893 

Other Institutional Facilities $ 17,969,198 $ 3,092,023 

The total estimated book values of property, plant, and equipment, net of depreciation, of 
the Institution as of June 30, 2021 are as follows: 

Athletically Related Property, Plant, and Equipment Balance 

Institution's Total Property, Plant, and Equipment Balance 
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Estimated Book 

Value 

$ 21,433,247 

$ 224,731 ,687 



Youngstown State University 

Notes to Intercollegiate Ath letics Program 

State1nent of Revenues and Expenses 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Note 3 - Intercollegiate Athletics-Related Debt 

The annual debt service and debt outstanding for the Institution as of June 30, 2021 are 
as follows: 

Athletically Related Facilities 

Institution's Total 

$ 

$ 

Annual Debt 

Service 

Debt 

Outstanding 

380,197 $ 3,782,749 

4,180,444 $ 70,045,599 

The repayment schedule for all outstanding intercollegiate athletics debt maintained by 
the Institution for the years ending June 30 is as follows : 

Total 

Intercollegiate 

Athletics Debt 

2022 $ 228,213 
2023 235,665 
2024 244,048 
2025 253,363 
2026 263,609 

2027-2034 2,557,851 

$ 3,782,749 

Note 4 - Restricted and Endowment and Plant Funds 

During the year, the Institution had no significant change in loan, endowment, or plant 
funds related to intercolleg iate athletics. 

In addition, at June 30, 2021 , the Institution had $78,656 of endowments and $0 in 
pledges receivable dedicated to the sole support of athletics not reported in the 
Statement. The athletics department's fund balance is $1 ,280,550 at June 30, 2021 . 
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To the Board of Trustees 

Independent Auditor's Report 

WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Plante & Moran, PLLC 
Su,te 100 

250 S H,gh Street 
Columbus, OH l3215 

Tel: 6 14.8493000 
Fax: 614.2213535 

plantemoran.com 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio (the 
"Station") , a department of Youngstown State University, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise WYSU-FM Youngstown State 
University Radio's basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our 
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 and the changes in its 
financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matters 

We draw attention to Note 1, which explains that these financial statements of the Station are intended to present 
the net position , changes in net position , and changes in cash flows of only that portion of Youngstown State 
University's business-type activities that are attributable to the transactions of the Station. They do not purport to, 
and do not, present fairly the net position of Youngstown State University as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the 
changes in its net position, or the changes in its cash flows thereof for the years then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect 
to this matter. 

As described in Note 9 to the financial statements, the COVID-19 pandemic has impacted operations at the Station. 
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 



To the Board of Trustees 
WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion 
and analysis, schedule of the Station's proportionate share of the net position liability, schedule of the Station's 
pension contributions, schedule of the Station's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset), and schedule 
of the Station's OPEB contributions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 
which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio's basic financial statements. The schedule of nonfederal 
financial support is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 

The schedule of nonfederal financial support is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of nonfederal financial support is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 29, 2021 on 
our consideration of WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio's internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

November 29, 2021 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The Management" s Discuss ion and Analysis section of the WYSU-FM Youngstown State 
University Radio (WYSU-FM or the Station) Financial Report presents an unaud ited discussion 
and analysis of the financial perfo rmance of the Station, a non-commercial public radio statioo 
operated by Youngstown State Uni versity (the Univers ity or YSU), during the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 202 1 with comparative information for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and June 30, 
20 19. This discuss ion has been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with 
the financial statements and the accompanying notes that follow. 

Introduction 

The University operates WYSU-FM , a 50,000-watt radio station that serves the Mahoning and 
Shenango Valley reg ions with fine arts, news, and info rmation programming from its studios in 
Melnick Hall. WYSU-FM functions as a department of the Divis ion of University Relations at 
the University. The Station broadcasts a mix of news and classical music programs on its main 
analog channel, HD I (d igital) channel, and an internet stream. WYSU-FM also broadcasts 
classical music on its HD2 channel and second internet stream. The Station broadcasts at 88.5 
MHz in Youngstown, Ohio, 90.1 MHz in Ashtabu la, Ohio, and 89.7 MHz in New Wilmington, 
Pennsylvania. 

WYSU-FM is a non-commercial, li stener-suppo11ed, community-based public rad io station 
committed to being the region ' s leading source for quality programming. It provides trusted in­
depth news, engaging conversation, and music that stimulates the mind and spirit. As one of 
YSU 's most visible daily representatives to the community, WYSU-FM also stri ves to be a 
valuable ambassador to the community, providing a forum to promote the artistic and intellectual 
activities of the University. 

Since I 969, public rad io WYSU 88.5 FM has been northeast Ohio·s and western Pennsylvania·s 
source for the best in news and info rmation programming. music, and entertainment. WYSU-FM 
is a cha11er National Public Radio (NPR) affili ate station. Every week thousands of listeners tune 
to the Station fo r its ec lectic and innovative non-commercial program schedule including engaging 
news and in fo rmation, great entertainment. and superb classical. jazz, and fo lk music - together 
providing a provocative, culturally rich, and intellectually stimulating journey for WYSU-FM 
I isteners. 

On March 11 , 2020. the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a respiratory disease 
caused by a new coronavirus a pandemic, now known as COVID-1 9. In response to the COVID-
19 pandemic, governments have taken preventative or protective actions, such as temporary 
closures of non-essential businesses and --shelter-at-home·· guidelines for individuals. As a resu lt, 
the global economy has been negatively affected. and the Station· s operations were also impacted. 
Due to the ··shelter-at-home .. guidelines during April and May 2020, the Station expanded its 
remote operations capabilities . In add ition, many events were cancelled or temporarily postponed 
until the --shelter-at-home" guide lines were reduced or removed, wh ich resulted in lost fundra ising 
and underwriting revenues for the Stat ion for the years ended June 30, 202 1 and June 30, 2020. In 
response, the Station instituted measures to reduce personnel expenses, including temporary 
layoffs, permanent layoffs, fu rloughs and pay reductions and a reduction in operating expenses. 
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wvsu .. FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

To offset the financial impact and losses incurred by the Station due to the disruption caused by 
COVID-1 9 and to defray COVID-1 9 expenses, the Station received grants and other relief 
primarily authorized through the Coronav irus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act, 
the Coronavirus Relief & Recovery Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSAA), and the 
American Rescue Plan Act of 202 1. 
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WYSU-FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

Using the Financial Statements 

. The Station' s financial report includes three basic financial statements: the Statement of Net 
Position, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of 
Cash Flows. These financ ial statements are prepared in accordance with the financ ial reporting 
format required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board' s (GASB) Statements No. 34, 
Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local 
Governments, as amended by GASB Statement No. 61 , The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus; 
and No. 35, Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for Public 
Colleges and Universities, as amended by GASB Statements No. 37, Basic Financial Statements 
- and Management 's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments: Omnibus and 
No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures. These statements establi sh standards for 
external financial reporting for public colleges and uni versities and require that financial 
statements be presented on a basis to focus on the fi nancial condition of the Station, the results of 
operations, and cash flows of the Station as a whole. 

During fi scal year 20 18, the Station adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB) and during fi scal year 2015, 
the Station adopted GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions -
an amendment ofGASB Statement No. 27. These statements significantly rev ised accounting fo r 
pension/OPES costs and assets/liabilities. 

Prior to GASBs 68 and 75, the accounting for pension/OP EB costs, was focused on a fund ing 
approach, which limited pension/OPES costs to contributions annually required by law, which 
may or may not be sufficient to fu lly fund each pension plan·s net pension/OPES asset/ liability. 

Under standards required by these statements, the net pension/OPES asset/ liability equals the 
Station· s proportionate share o f each pension/OPES plan ·s collective present va lue of estimated 
future pension/OPEB benefits attributable to employees· past service minus plan assets available 
to pay these benefits. Pension/OPES obligations, whether funded or unfunded, are part of the 
--employment exchange .. - that is, the employee is trading his or her labor in exchange for wages, 
benefits, and the promise of a future pension and OPEB. The unfunded portions of these 
pension/OP EB promises are a present obligati on. patt of a bargained-for benefit to the employee, 
and are reported by the Station as liabilities since the benefit of the exchange was received. 

The nature of Ohio· s statewide pension systems and state law governing those systems requires 
additional explanation in order to properly understand the information presented in these 
statements. The Station is not responsible for ce1tain key factors affecting the ba lance of these 
liabilities. In Ohio, the employee shares the obligation of funding pension benefi ts with the 
employer. Both employer and employee contribution rates are capped by the State statute. A 
change in these caps requires action by both Houses of the General Assembly and approval of the 
Governor. Benefit provisions are also determined by State statute. The employee enters the 
employment exchange with the knowledge that the employer·s promise is limited not by contract 
but by law. The employer enters the exchange also knowing that there is a specific, legal limit to 
its contribution to the pension system. In Ohio, there is no lega l means to enforce the unfunded 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

liability of the pension system against the public employer. State law operates to mitigate the 
obligation of the public employer to the employee because all parties enter the employment 
exchange with notice as to the law. The pension system is responsible for the administration of 
the plan. 

Most long-term liabilities have set repayment schedules or, in the case of compensated absences 
(i.e. s ick and vacation leave), are satisfied through paid time-off or termination payments. There 
is no repayment schedule for the net pension/OPES assets/liabilities. Changes in pension/OPES 
benefits, contribution rates, and return on investments affect the balances of the net pension/OPES 
assets/liabilities, but are outside the control of the public employer. In the event that contributions, 
investment returns, and other changes are insufficient to keep up with required payments, State 
statute does not assign/ identify the responsible party for the unfunded portion. Due to the unique 
nature of how the net pension/OPES assets/I iabi I ities are satisfied , these assets and I iabi Ii ties are 
separately identified within the noncurrent asset and long-term liability sections of the Statement 
of Net Position. 

In accordance with GASSs 68 and 75, the Station 's statements, prepared on an accrual basis of 
accounting, include an annual pension/OP EB expense for the proportionate share of each pension 
plan 's change in net pension/OPES asset/ liability. 

Overall key presentation elements of the financial statements include: 

• Assets and liabilities are categorized as either current or noncurrent. Current assets and 
liabilities will be consumed or fulfill ed within one year. 

• Revenues and expenses are categorized as either operating or non-operating. Significant 
recurring sources of the Station's revenues, including the general appropriation from the 
University and membership revenue are considered non-operating, as defined by GASS 
Statement No. 35 . 

• Capital assets are reported net of accumulated depreciation. 

The Statement of Net Position 

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the Station at the end of the fi scal 
year and includes al I assets ( current and noncurrent), deferred outflows of resources, I iabi Ii ties 
(current and noncurrent), deferred inflows of resources, and net position of the Station. Current 
assets are classified as such if they are available to satisfy current liabilities, which are generally 
defined as being due within one year of the date of the Statement of Net Pos ition. Net position is 
one indicator of the financial condition of the Station, while the change in net position is an 
indicator of whether the overall financial condition has improved or worsened during the year. 

A summarized comparison of the Station 's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 
deferred inflows of resources, and net position at June 30, 202 1, 2020, and 20 19 was as fol lows: 
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/\s Restated 
June 30, 2021 June 30. 2020 June 30. 2019 

Assets 
Current assets $ 1.923.766 $ 1.681.535 $ 1.697.62 1 

oncurrent assets 
Capital assets. net 121.41 2 153.236 9 1.269 
Other assets 326.672 22 1,222 2 15,73 1 

Total Noneurrent assets 448.084 374.458 307.000 
Total Assets 2.37 1.850 2.055.993 2.004.62 1 

Deferred Out0ows of Resources 49.715 130.9 19 353.796 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities 40.76 1 53.557 44.66 1 
Noncurrent liabilities 388,089 1.06 1.453 1.246,929 

Total Liabi lities 428.850 1.11 5.0 10 1.29 1,590 

Deferred In nows o f Resources 349.636 223. I 98 34.500 

Net Posi tion 
et investment in capital assets 12 1.41 2 153.236 9 1.269 

Restricted 3 17.286 237.495 250.280 
Unrestricted 1.204.38 1 457.973 690,778 

Total Net Position $ 1,643.079 848,704 $ 1,032,327 

Total assets, cons1st111g primarily of cash and cash equi valents. accounts receivable, pledges 
receivable, investments, and capital assets. increased $3 15,857 or I 5% from fisca l year 2020 to 
fiscal year 2021. Current assets increased $242,23 1 or 14% between fi scal year 2020 and fiscal 
year 202 1 primarily due to an increase in cash and cash equivalents, the result of $ 148,564 received 
from the CPB Cares Act grant and a $ 102,928 bequest from an estate. Noncurrent assets increased 
$73,626 or 20% from fi scal year 2020 to fi scal year 202 1. The increase was attributed to a 
combination of an increase in endowment investments of $62,699 due to a favorable market 
environment in fi scal year 202 1 and the recognition of a net OPEB asset of $42,75 1 offset by a 
decrease in net capital assets of $3 1,824 which represents the recording of fi scal year 202 1 
depreciation. 

Total assets, cons1st111g primarily of cash and cash equi valents, accounts receivable, pledges 
rece ivable, investments, and cap ital assets, increased $5 1,372 or 3% from fi scal year 20 19 to fisca l 
year 2020. Current assets decreased $ 16,086 or I% between fiscal year 20 19 and fi scal year 2020 
primarily due to decreases in cash and cash equi valents and accounts rece ivable, the result of 
decreases in membership and underwriting revenue due to the impact of the COVID-1 9 pandemic. 
Noncurrent assets increased $67,458 or 22% from fi scal year 20 19 to fi sca l year 2020. The 
increase was primarily attributed to a $6 1,967 or 68% increase in capital assets, which was due to 
the purchase of a new primary transmitter that was installed in January 2020. 

See Note 2 for additional information on cash and cash equivalents, Note 3 for investments, and 
Note 4 for capi tal assets. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

Deferred outflows of resources represent the consumption of resources that are applicable to a 
future reporting period, but do not require further exchange of goods or services; whereas deferred 
inflows of resources represent the acquisition of resources that are applicable to a future reporting 
period. The fol lowing table summarizes balances at: 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Related to pens ion 
Related to OPES 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to pension 
Related to OPES 
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

June 30, 202 1 
$ 28,697 

21 ,018 
$ 49,715 

June 30, 2021 
$ 195,976 

153,660 
$ 349,636 

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 
$ 65,676 $ 23 1,845 

65,243 12 1,951 
$ 130,919 $ 353,796 

June 30, 2020 June 30, 20 19 
$ 151 ,759 $ 21 ,3 78 

71 ,439 13,122 
$ 223, 198 $ 34,500 

Included in deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are items relating to 
pensions and OPES. Certain elements impacting the change in the net pension/OPES 
assets/liabilities have a longer-term perspective than the current year, therefore, to reduce volatility 
these elements are amortized over a closed period of speci fied duration. These include differences 
between expected and actual experience, changes of assumptions, net differences between 
projected and actual earni ngs of investments, and changes in the propo1tionate share of 
contributions. These elements can be reflected as either a deferred outflow of resources or a 
deferred inflow of resources. 

Deferred outflows of resources decreased $8 1,204 or 62% from fisca l year 2020 to fiscal year 
202 1. Deferred outflows of resources related to pension decreased $36,979 or 56% primarily due 
to a $32,016 decrease in the changes in assumptions related to the Ohio Public Employees 
Retirement System (OPERS) plan. Deferred outflows of resources related to OPES decreased 
$44,225 or 68% primarily due to a $44,139 decrease in the changes in assumptions related to the 
OPERS plan. 

Deferred inflows of resources increased $ 126,438 or 57% from fiscal year 2020 to fi scal year 202 1. 
Deferred inflows of resources related to pension increased $44,217 or 29% primarily due to a 
$2 1,62 1 increase in the net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan 
investments, a $ 15,09 1 increase in change in proportionate share of contributions to the OPERS 
plan and a $7,506 increase in the differences between expected and actual experience. Deferred 
inflows of resources re lated to OPES increased $82,22 1 or 11 5% due to a $69,267 increase in 
changes in assumptions related to the OPERS plan and a $ 10,209 increase in change in 
proportionate share of contributions to the OPERS plan. 

Deferred outflows of resources decreased $222,877 or 63% from fiscal year 20 19 to fiscal year 
2020. Deferred outflows of resources related to pension decreased $ 166, 169 or 72% primarily due 
to a $ 119,899 decrease in the net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

investments. Deferred outflows of resources related to OPES decreased $56,708 or 47% primarily 
due to a combination of a $85,525 decrease in the change in proportionate share of contributions 
and a $43,2 12 increase in the changes in assumptions. 

Deferred inflows of resources increased $ 188,698 or 54 7% from fi scal year 20 19 to fi scal year 
2020. Deferred inflows of resources related to pension increased $ 130,38 1 primari ly due to a 
$ 119,844 increase in the net difference between projected and actual earn ings on pension plan 
investments. Deferred inflows of resources related to OPES increased $58,3 17 due to a 
combination of a $36,69 1 increase in the differences between expected and actual experience and 
a $20,960 increase in the net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan 
investments. 

See Note 6 for add itional in formation on employee benefit plans. 

Total liabilities consisting of accounts payable, payroll liab ilities, unearned revenue, compensated 
absences, net pension liabi lity, and net OPES liability decreased $686, 160 or 62% from fiscal year 
2020 to fiscal year 202 1 and was primarily due to a decrease in the net pension liability of$4 l I ,635 
or I 00%. a decrease in the net pension liability of $238,526 or 41 %, a decrease in compensated 
absences of $23,203 or 38% and a decrease in accounts payab le of $ 19,507 or 85%. 

Tota l liabilities consisting of accounts payable, payroll liabi lities, unearned revenue, compensated 
absences, net pens ion liability, and net OPES liability decreased $ 176,580 or 14% from fiscal year 
20 19 lo fi scal year 2020 and was primarily due to a combination of a decrease in the net pension 
liabili ty of $285,488 or 33% and an increase in the net OPES liability of$ 108,5 IO or 36%. 

See Note 5 fo r additional in formation on compensated absences and Note 6 for in formation on 
employee benefit plans. 

Net pos ition represents the residual interest in the Station' s assets after deferred outflows of 
resources are added, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources are deducted. The fo llowing 
is a recap of total net position segregating the unrestricted net position relating to the impact of the 
GASSs 68 and 75. 

As Restated 

June 30, 202 I June 30, 2020 June 30, 20 19 

Net investment in capital assets $ 12 1,41 2 $ I 53,236 $ 91 ,269 

Restricted - nonexpendable 108, 153 108,153 I 08, 153 

Restricted - expendable 209, 133 129,342 142,127 

Unrestricted 1,8 11 ,392 1,550,254 1,548,462 

Total net position without GASBs 68 and 75 2,250,090 1,940,985 1,890,0 11 

GASB 68 (5 17, 120) (674,450) (663 ,388) 

GASB 75 (89,891) (4 17,831) (194,296) 

Total Net Position $ 1,643 ,079 $ 848,704 $ 1,032,327 

9 



wvsu .. FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 
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Overall , the Station' s total net position increased $794,375 or 94% from $848,704 at June 30, 2020 
to $ 1,64-3 ,079 at June 30, 202 1. This was primarily due to an increase of $746,408 in unrestricted 
net pos ition. Excluding net position attributed to GASBs 68 and 75, net pos ition increased 
$309, I 05 or 16% from $ 1,940,985 at June 30, 2020 to $2,250,090 at June 30, 202 1. The net 
investment in capital assets consists of equipment net of accumulated deprec iation. The $3 1,824 
or 21 % decrease from fi sca l year 2020 to fiscal year 2021 was due to cun-ent year deprec iation 
expense. Restricted nonexpendable net pos ition consists primarily of endowment funds held by 
the Un iversity in the name of the Station. Changes in this category are driven by additions or 
deductions to the endowment corpus. During fi scal year 202 1, there were no changes. Restricted 
expendable net position is subject to externall y imposed restrictions governing their use . Changes 
in this category are due to the timing of revenues and expenses in funds provided by donors and 
grantors. Restricted expendab le net position increased $79,79 1 or 62% primarily due to the 
allocation of unrealized investment gains in the Station's endowment fund. Unrestricted net 
position is not subject to externally imposed restrictions and is des ignated fo r future operations. 
Unrestricted net pos ition increased $26 1,138 or 17% from fi scal year 2020 to fi scal year 202 1 
primari ly due to an excess of membership revenue over expenses and federal appropriations 
received due to the COV lD- 19 pandemic. 

Overall , the Station's tota l net pos ition decreased $ 183,623 or 18% from $ 1,032,327 at June 30, 
20 19 to $848,704 at June 30, 2020. This was primarily due to a combination of a decrease of 
$232,805 in unrestricted net position offset by an increase of $6 1,967 in net investment in capital 
assets. Exc luding net position attri buted to GASBs 68 and 75, net position increased $50,974 or 
3% from $ 1,890,0 I I at June 30, 201 9 to $ 1,940,985 at June 30, 2020. The net investment in capital 
assets consists of equipment net of accumulated depreciation. The $6 1,967 or 68% increase fro m 
tiscal year 20 19 to fi scal year 2020 was due to the purchase of equipment offset by current year 
deprec iation expense. Rest ricted nonexpendable net position consists primarily of endowment 
funds held by the University in the name of the Station. Changes in this category are driven by 
addit ions or deductions to the endowment corpus. During fi sca l year 2020, there were no changes. 
Restricted expendable net position is subject to externally imposed restrictions governing their use. 
Changes in this category are due to the timing of revenues and expenses in funds prov ided by 
donors and grantors. Restri cted expendable net position decreased $ 12,785 or 9% primari ly due 
to COVID-1 9 re lated expenses, which were not re imbursable until fiscal year 202 1. Unrestricted 
net position is not subject to externally imposed restrictions and is designated for future operations. 
Unrestricted net position remained flat with an increase of $ 1,792 or 0. 1 % from fiscal year 2019 
to fiscal year 2020. 

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

These statements present the operating results and the non-operating revenues and expenses of the 
Station. Operating revenues are generated by an annual Community Service Grant (a portion of 
which is restricted) from the Corporation fo r Public Broadcasting (CPB) and an annual grant from 
the Broadcast Educational Media Commission (BEMC), which is administered by the eTech Ohio 
Commission. In addition, in-kind support is received from BEMC and includes support fo r 
transmission of Radio Reading Service Programming. Operating revenues also include 
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contributions from area businesses (program underwriting). Operating expenses are incurred to 
vendors and employees for providing goods or services fo r the overall operations of the Station. 
Net non-operating revenues include fede ra l appropriations, the general appropriation from the 
Uni versity, donated facil ities and adm inistrative support from the Uni vers ity, membership 
revenue, net revenue from fund raising, private gifts, and net investment income. Federal 
appropriations include COVID- 19 relief funding from the CPB and the COVID-1 9 Higher 
Education Emergency Relief Fund - Institutional Portion. 

A summary of the Station·s revenues, expenses, and changes in net position fo llows: 

As Restated 

June 30, 202 1 June 30. 2020 June 30. 20 19 

Total Operating Revenues $ 37 1.228 $ 4 11 ,023 $ 433,029 

Total Operating Expenses 583,260 1,67 1,087 1,377,607 

Operating Loss (2 12.032) ( 1.260.064) (944.578) 

Net Non-operating Re,·enues 1.006.407 1,076.4-11 1.0 14,686 

Gain (Loss) Before Other Re,·enue. Expenses. and Changes 79-1.375 ( 183.623) 70.108 

Total Other Rei enue. Expenses. and Changes ( 13,000) 

Change in Net Posi tion 79-1 .3 75 ( 183.623) 57. 108 

Net Position at Beginning of the Year. as restated 848,70.J 1,032,327 975,219 

Net Position at End of the Year $ 1.643.079 $ 848,704 $ 1,032,327 

The Station ·s total operating revenues decreased $39,795 or I 0% from fiscal year 2020 to fi scal 
year 202 1. The dec rease was primarily the result of a dec rease of $20,0 13 in revenue from 
underwriting contracts due to the impact of the COVI D-1 9 pandemic and a decrease of in-kind 
contributions of $ 12,624. 

The Station ' s total operat ing revenues decreased $22,006 or 5% from fiscal year 2019 to fi scal 
year 2020. The decrease was the result of a decrease in underwriting contracts due to the impact 
of the COVID- 19 pandemic. 

The fo llowing is a recap of total operating expenses with the impact of the GASBs 68 and 75 
pension expense accruals segregated. 

June 30, 202 1 June 30, 2020 June 30, 20 19 

Program Services $ 678,597 $ 720,04 1 $ 8 17,998 

Suppon Services 389,933 7 16,449 582,539 

Operating Expenses wi thout GASBs 68 and 75 accruals 1,068,530 1,436,490 1,400,537 

GASB 68 pension expense accruals ( 157,330) 11 ,062 12 1,236 

GASB 75 OPEB expense accrual (327,940) 223,535 ( 144, 166) 

Total Operating Expenses $ 583,260 $ 1,67 1,087 $ 1,377,607 
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Excluding the impact of GASSs 68 and 75, total operating expenses decreased $367,960 or 26% 
from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021. Program services decreased $4 1,444 or 6% primarily 
due to the shift of the broadcast engineering position from full-time status to pa11-time status. 
Support services decreased $326,5 16 or 46% primarily attributed to planned staff reductions due 
to COYID- 19 in fi scal year 202 1, which included the elimination of a full-time position primarily 
utilized for underwriting and fundraising activities and a decrease in institutional support from the 
University. 

Pension expense attributed to GASS 68 decreased $168,392 from $ 1 1,062 in fi scal year 2020 to 
($ 157,330) in fi scal year 2021; whereas OPES expense attributed to GASS 75 decreased $551 ,475 
from $223,535 in fi scal year 2020 to ($327,940) in fiscal year 202 1. These expenses are the result 
of changes in the deferred outflows/ inflows and liabili ties/assets related to pension/OPES. Due to 
the pension asset income pick up in fi scal year 202 1, Program information expenses and Traffic 
and continuity expenses included in Program Services expenses as well as Underwriting expenses 
included in Support Services expenses are all presenting as negati ve expenses on the Statements 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. The Station has no control over the factors 
affecting these changes. 

Excluding the impact of GASSs 68 and 75, total operating expenses increased $35,953 or 3% from 
fi scal year 20 19 to fi sca l year 2020. Program services decreased $97,957 or 12% primarily 
attributed to staff reductions in fi scal year 2020, which inc luded a full-time position in 
programming shifting to a part-time position and the retirement of a full-time broadcast engineer. 
Support services increased $ 133,9 10 or 23% primarily due to increased staff utilization 
percentages towards fund raising and membership activities and an increase in institutional support 
from the Un iversity. 

Pension expense attributed to GASS 68 decreased $ 11 0, 174 from $ 121,236 in fi scal year 2019 to 
$1 1,062 in fi scal year 2020; whereas OPES expense attributed to GASB 75 increased $367, 70 I 
from ($ 144,166) in fiscal year 20 19 to $223,535 in fi scal year 2020, respecti vely. These expenses 
are the result of changes in the deferred outflow/inflows and liabilities related lo pension/OPES. 
The Station has no control over the factors affecting these changes. 

See Note 6 for add itional in formation on pension plans and other post-employment benefits 
(OPES) and Note 9 for more in format ion about the COV ID-19 pandemic. 
Total net non-operating revenues decreased $70,034 or 7% from fiscal year 2020 to fi scal year 
202 1. Federal appropriations increased $9 1,757 or 122% primarily due to receiving CARES Act 
funding from the CPB. The general appropriation from the University decreased $85,426 or 2 1 % 
between fi scal year 2020 and fiscal year 202 1, primarily due to payroll reductions resulting from 
an employee resigning from their position. Donated faci lities and administrative support from the 
University decreased $ 184,795 or 69% due to a decrease in institutional support from the 
University, the result of a decrease in total operating expenses in fiscal year 202 1. Private gifts 
increased $67,789 or 154% and included a $ 102,928 bequest from an estate and a $ I 0,000 private 
gift. Investment gains, net of investment expense increased $57,719 or 384% which is attributed 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

to the recognition of unrealized gains in the Station ·s endowment fund due to favorab le market 
conditions. 
The Station had no other revenues, expenses and changes in fiscal year 2021 . 

Total net non-operating revenues increased $6 1,755 or 6% from fiscal year 2019 to fiscal year 
2020. The Station received federal appropriations of $75,000 related to CARES Act funding from 
the CPS due to the COVI D- I 9 pandemic, as well as a $43,139 bequest from an estate. The general 
appropriation from the University decreased $ 109,345 or 21 % between fiscal year 20 19 and fiscal 
year 2020, primarily due to payro ll reductions resulting from the retirement of a broadcast engineer 
and the lay-off of another employee. Donated fac ilities and administrative support from the 
University increased $72,785 or 3 7% due to an increase in institutional support from the 
University, the result of a new indirect administrative support calculation implemented by the CPS 
in fiscal year 2020. Membership income decreased $23,328 or 8% due to the COVID-1 9 pandemic. 

The Station had no other revenues, expenses and changes in fiscal year 2020. Other revenues, 
expenses and changes in fi scal year 20 I 9 consist of $13,000 col lec ted during the spring 2019 
fund drive which the Station used to establish the Barbara A. Krauss Memorial Scholarshi p to be 
awarded annually to students enrolled in the Dana School of Music and majoring in music 
recording and techno logy. 
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wvsu .. FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

Economic Factors for the Future 

Despite challenges arising from the current global pandemic, management be lieves the Station is 
well-positioned to continue its favorab le financial condition. As one of Youngstown State 
University's most visible campus and community enti ties , WYSU-FM reaches over 30,000 weekly 
listeners who spend 12 million hours annually with the Station. The broadcast coverage area 
includes eight counties in Ohio and three in Pennsylvania, as well as many other listeners 
throughout the country and around the world th rough its streaming services and smartphone 
applications. WYSU continues to work to enhance and expand its commitment to diversity, equity 
and inclusion. With the continued support of the Uni versity's Board of Trustees, administration, 
and dedicated staff, as well as the generous loyalty of the Station' s listener-members, the support 
of businesses, non-profi t organizations, and fo undations, WYSU-FM maintains stability during 
cha llenging economic times. 

Shifti ng market trends exacerbated by the pandemic have led to an increased focus on planned 
gifting and expand ing membershi p. Decreases in underwriting support are projected for the 
upcoming year due to increased populari ty in digital advertising and substantial reductions in 
advertising rates charged by commercial radio stations in the market make it difficult fo r the 
underwri ting program to remain competi tive. The Station plans to work vigorously with the YSU 
Foundation to pursue major and planned gifting, which has proven to be successful in the past year 
and is a way to grow long-term external support. Membership continues to be a crucial element in 
the success of the Station. In order to expand membership, the Station plans to continue to seek 
opportuniti es to diversify network and local programming across all platforms to appeal to the 
current core audiences and attract a more diverse and younger audience. The Community Voices 
initiative was implemented in the current year to diversify viewpoints not commonly heard on 
local media, and fo ur new programs were added to the schedule to promote diversity. 

The Station recognizes the need to continuously enhance, upgrade and develop new technologies 
and is focused on enhancing broadcast services and operational effi ciency. Major projects in the 
planning phase include migrating the station to a new content management system, upgrading 
software on office workstations, repairing the primary antenna and laying groundwork fo r 
upgrades in the automation system hardware. Completion of these projects coupled with a foc us 
on providing a diverse and inclusive listen ing experience will ensure the Station continues to be a 
reliable and fo rward-looking service for the region. 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION AT JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 
ASSETS 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,904,033 $ 1,660,924 
Interest receivable 174 222 
Accounts receivable (net of allowance of 

$0 in 202 I and$ I ,369 in 2020) 4,928 5,228 
Pledges receivable (net of allowance of 

$2,345 in 202 1 and $3 ,987 in 2020) 14,631 15,161 
Total Current Assets 1,923,766 1,681 ,535 

Noncurrent Assets 
Endowment investments 283,921 221 ,222 
Net OPEB asset 42,751 
Capital assets, net 121,412 153,236 

Total Noncurrent Assets 448,084 374,458 
Total Assets 2,371 ,850 2,055,993 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred outflows related to pension 28,697 65,676 
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 21 ,018 65,243 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 49,715 130,9 19 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable 3,464 22,971 
Payroll liabilities 18,6 14 11,628 
Unearned revenue 12,41 I 13,340 
Compensated absences 6,272 5,6 I 8 

Total Current Liabilities 40,761 53,557 
Noncu rrent Liabilities 

Compensated absences 38,248 61,451 
Net pension li abi lity 349,84 1 588,367 
Net OPEB liability 41 1,635 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 388,089 1,061 ,453 
Total Liabilities 428,850 1,115,010 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred inflows related to pension 195,976 151 ,759 
Deferred inflows related to OPEB I 53,660 71,439 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 349,636 223,198 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 121,412 153,236 
Restricted, nonexpendable 108.153 108,1 53 
Restricted, expendable 209,133 129,342 
Unrestricted 1,204,38 1 457,973 

Tota l Net Position $ 1,643,079 $ 848,704 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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wvsu .. FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 

REVENUES 
Operating Revenues 

Corporation for Public Broadcasting grant $ 120,557 $ 124,819 

In-kind contributions 137,782 150,406 

Broadcast Education Media Commiss ion grant 3 1,350 34,246 

Underwrit ing revenue 8 1,539 101 ,552 

Total Operating Revenues 37 1,228 411 ,023 

EXPENSES 
Operating Expenses 

Program Services 

Programming and production 337,656 5 12 ,794 

Broadcasting 124,480 199,959 

Prog ram information (7,966) 77,032 

Traffic and continuity ( 1,466) 2 1,467 

Support Serv ices 
Management and general 84,547 406, 112 

Fund raising and membership development 11 ,580 112,529 

Underwriting (5 ,215) 165,320 

Clerical 7,820 137,477 

Depreciation 31 ,824 38,397 

Total Operating Expenses 583,260 1,67 1,087 

Operating Loss (212,032) ( 1,260,064) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Federal appropriations 166,757 75,000 

General appropriat ion from the University 324,11 2 409,538 

Donated fac ilities and administrative support 
from the University 84,054 268,849 

Membership revenue 247,062 256,480 

Net revenues from fund rai sing 7,660 

Private g ifts 11 1,678 43 ,889 

Investment income, net of investment expense 72,744 15,025 

Net Nonoperating Revenues 1,006,407 1,076,441 

Change in Net Position 794,375 (183,623) 

NET POSITION 
Net Position at Beginning of the Year 848,704 1,032,327 
Net Position at End of the Year $ 1.643.079 $ 848.704 

See accompanying notes to financ ial statements. 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Corporat ion for Public Broadcasting grant $ 120.557 $ 124.8 19 
Broadcast Educational Media Commission grant 31.350 34,246 
Underwriting support 80.92 1 109.630 
Payments to suppliers (3 74.1 28) (383.203) 
Payments to employees (333 .865) (423,513) 
Payments fo r benefits ( 14 1.948) ( 170.684) 

Total Cash Flows Used in Operating Activities (617.113) (708.705) 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 
Federal appropriations 166.757 75.000 
General appropriation from the University 324,112 409,538 
Membership receipts 247.582 254.283 
Fundraising receipts 10.930 
Payments for fundraising (3,270) 
Private gifts 111.678 43.889 

Total Cash Flows Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 850. 129 790.370 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Interest on investments 72.792 15.129 
Purchase of investments (62,699) (5,491 ) 

Total Cash Flows Provided by Investing Activities 10.093 9.638 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Purchase or capital assets ( I 00,364) 

Total Cash Flows Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities ( I 00.364) 

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 243 .1 09 (9.06 1) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1,660.924 1.669,985 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 1.904.033 $ 1 .660.92➔ 

Reconci liation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities 
Operating loss $ (2 12.032) s ( 1.260.064) 
Adjustments 10 reconcile operating loss 10 11..:1 cash ust:d in op..:rating acti\ ities: 

Depreciation 3 1 ,82➔ 38.397 
Donated facilities and administrative support from the Univers ity 84.054 268.849 
Chang..:s in asst:ls and liabilities: 

Accounts rect:ivable. net" 3 11 9.118 
Net OPEB asset (42.75 1) 
Accou111s payablt.:. payroll liabiliti..:s. comp..:nsated absenc..:s. and 

unearned re\ enuc (36.000) 398 
Net pcnsion/OPEB liability (650.161 ) ( 176.978) 
Deferred outnows-pcnsion and OPEB 81.204 222.877 
Deferred in llows-pension and OPEB 126.438 188,698 

Net Cash Flows Used in Operating Activ ities $ (6 17.11 3} $ (708.705} 

See accompanying notes 10 financial s1a11.:111en1s. 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Organization and Basis of Presentation 

WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio (WYSU-FM or the Station) is operated as a 
department o f the Division of University Relations at Youngstown State University (the University 
or YSU) and is subject to the policies established by the University 's Board of Trustees. The 
Station repo1ts annually to the Corporation for Public Broadcasting (CPB). 

The financial statements of the Station are intended to present the financial position, the changes 
in financial pos ition and cash flows, of only that portion of the activities of Youngstown State 
University that is attributable to the transactions of the Station. They do not purport to, and do not 
present fairly the financial position of Youngstown State University as of June 30, 202 1 and 2020, 
and the changes in its financ ial pos ition and its cash flows, for the years then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

The financial statements of the Station have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Government 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

As required by the GASB, resources are classified for accounting and repo1ting purposes into the 
following four net position categories: 

• Net investment in capita l assets - Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced 
by outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
improvement of those assets. 

• Restricted, nonexpendable - Resources subject to externally imposed stipulations that they 
be maintained permanently by the Station. Such resources include the Station's permanent 
endowment funds. 

• Restricted, expendable - Resources whose use by the Station is subject to externally 
imposed stipulations that can be fulfil led by actions of the Station pursuant to those 
stipulations or that expire by the passage of time. Such resources include the restricted 
portion of the CPB ' s Radio Community Service Grant, donations, and endowment 
earnings. 

• Unrestricted - Resources that are not subject to externally imposed stipulations. 
Unrestricted resources may be designated for specific purposes by action of management, 
Board of Trustees or may otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside 
parties. Substantially all unrestricted resources are designated for Station programs, 
initiatives, and capital projects. 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 202 1 AND 2020 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic resource 
measurement focus and the acc rual basis of accounting. The Station reports as a business-type 
activity, as defined by the GASB. Business-type activities are those that are financed in whole or 
in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or serv ices. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Station considers all highly liquid investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are stated at 
cost, which approximates fair value and exc ludes amounts restricted by board designation or 
whose use is limited. 

Investments - Investments are reported at fa ir value based on quoted market prices. Changes in 
unrealized gains ( losses) on the carrying value of investments are reported as a component of 
investment income in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 
Restricted investments are comprised of endowment corpus and related spending funds. 

Endowment Policy- Under Ohio law set forth in the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional 
Funds Act (UPM IFA), as adopted in Ohio in 2009, the Board acts in a fiduciary capacity as trustee 
of its endowment funds. UPM IFA requires the Board to exercise its fiduc iary duties prudently and 
consider both the charitable purposes and needs of the Univers ity and the purposes of the spec ific 
endowment regarding current expenditures and preservation of the purchasing power of the funds. 
The Univers ity Endowment Fund consists of 92 named funds. which includes the Station's 
endowment. Each named fund is assigned a number of shares in the University Endowment Fund 
based on the va lue of the gifts to that named fund. The Un iversity' s endowment spending policy 
states that annual distributions each fi scal year are set to 5% of the twelve-quarter average of the 
market value fo r the preceding twelve calendar quarters. In calculating the twelve-quarter average, 
census dates of March 3 1, June 30, September 30, and December 3 1 for the previous three years 
shall be used. Distributions greater than the calcu lated amount require written justificat ion and 
Board of Trustees ' approval. 

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivab le consist of underwri ting charges for various Station 
programs and amounts due from private sources in connection with reimbursement of al lowable 
expenses under the appl icable Station grants and contracts. Also included are gifts received by the 
Youngstown State University Foundation (YSUF or Foundation) in the month of June on behalf 
of the Station, in accordance with a deve lopment services agreement between the Uni versity and 
the Foundation. Accounts are recorded net of allowance for uncol lectible accounts. 

Pledges Receivable - The Uni versity has a development services agreement with the Foundation. 
As part of the agreement, non-fundraising pledges are recorded by the Foundation. Payments on 
those pledges are col lected by the Foundation and remitted to the Station on a monthly basis. 
Pledges rece ivable consist of transactions relating to fundra ising activities. The Station receives 
pledges of financial support from corporations, foundations, and individuals. Revenue is 
recognized when a pledge representing an unconditional prom ise to pay is received and all 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 202 1 AND 2020 

eligibility requ irements have been met. In the absence of a conditional pledge, revenue is 
recognized when the gift is received. Pledges are recorded· net of an allowance fo r uncollectible 
amounts and are discounted to net present value. 

Capital Assets - Capital assets are comprised of equipment and stated at cost or acquisition value 
at date of gift. The capitalization threshold for equipment is $5,000. Depreciation is computed 
using the straight-line method over the estimated usefu l life of the asset. The estimated useful life 
for equipment is 3 to 7 years. The antenna and tower are depreciated over IO years. 

When capital assets are sold, or otherwise disposed of, the carrying value of such assets and any 
accumulated depreciation is removed from asset accounts and net investment in capital assets. The 
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the capital asset or 
materially extend the capital asset's life are expensed when incurred. 

Unearned Revenue - Unearned revenue includes certain underwriting amounts received prior to 
the end of the fi scal year that relate to the subsequent accounting period. Unearned revenue at 
June 30, 202 1 and June 30, 2020 were $ 12.4 1 I and $ I 3,340, respectively. 

Compensated Absences - Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave benefits are recorded as 
required by the GASB. The Station uses the termination method to accrue sick leave compensated 
absences on the Statement of Net Position. Station employees earn vacation and sick leave benefits 
based, in part, on length of service. Vacation pay is full y vested when earned. Upon separation 
from service, employees are paid accumulated vacation and sick pay based upon the nature of the 
separation (death, retirement, or termination). Certain limitations have been placed on hours of 
vacation and sick leave that employees may accumulate and carry over for payment at death, 
retirement or termination. Unused hours exceeding these limitations are fo rfeited. 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources - Deferred outflows of resources represent the 
consumption of resources that are applicable to a futu re reporting period, but do not require further 
exchange of goods or services. Deferred inflows of resources represent the acquisition of resources 
that are applicable to a future resource period. Deferred outflows and inflows of resources in the 
Station's financial statements relate to the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) 
pension/OPEB plan. 

Pensions/OPEB - For purposes of measuring the net pension/OPEB asset/liability, deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions/OP EB, pension/OP EB 
expense, info rmation about the fiduciary net position of the pension/OPES plans, and additions 
to/deductions from their fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by the pension/OPEB plan, which use the economic resources measurement focus and 
the full accrual basis of accounting. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms. Investments are reported at fa ir value. 
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wvsu .. FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

General Appropriation from the Univers ity - The general appropriation represents support from 
the University fo r salaries and operating expenses not provided through other sources. 

Donated Facilities and Administrative Support - Donated facilities and administrative support 
represent the Station's al located amounts of institutional support and donated faci I ities and is 
recorded as non-operating revenue and expenses in the Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and 
Changes in Net Position. Administrative support is based on the Station's pro-rata share of the 
University's total sa laries, wages, and administrative expenses. Donated faci li ties are the Station ' s 
pro-rata share of the Un iversity's total plant expenses along with calculated occupancy costs. 

Income Taxes - The Interna l Revenue Service has ruled that the University's income is genera lly 
exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code. The 
Uni versity is subject to tax on unrelated business income. 

Measurement Focus and Financial Statement Presentation - Operating revenues and expenses 
result from providing programming, production, and broadcasting support fo r the Station. The 
principal operating revenues include two grants, one from the CPB and one from the Broadcast 
Educational Media Commission (BEMC), along with underwriting revenue from area businesses. 
Principal operat ing expenses include programming, production, broadcasti ng, fundraising, and 
management services and support. The principal non-operating revenues are the general 
appropriation from the University and membership support. 

Release of Restri cted Funds - When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted 
and unrestricted resources are avai lable, it is the Station· s pol icy to apply restricted resources first, 
then unrestricted resources as needed. 

Management's Estimates - The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts repo1ted in the financial statements and 
disclosures in the notes to financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements - In fi scal year 202 1, the provis ions of the 
fo llowing GASS Statements became effective: 

• GASS Statement No. 84, Fiduciory Activities, issued January 20 17. As a result of the adoption 
of GASS Statement No. 95, the requirements of this Statement are now effective for reporting 
periods beginning after December 15, 20 19. The objective of this Statement is to improve 
guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activ ities for account ing and financia l 
repo1ting purposes and how those activities should be repotted. 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 

• GASS Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests-an amendment of GASE Statements No. I./ 
and No. 61 , issued August 20 18. As a result of adoption of GASS Statement No. 95, the 
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 
15, 20 19. The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the cons istency and 
comparability of reporting a government's majori ty equity interest in a legally separate 
organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain 
component units. 

• GASS Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates, issued March 2020. As a 
result of the adoption of GASS Statement No. 95, certain requirements of thi s Statement are 
now effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 202 1. Some governments have 
entered into agreements in which variable payments made or received depend on an interbank 
offer rate. As a result of global reference rate reform, some rates are expected to cease to exist 
prompting governments to amend or replace financial instruments. 

Adoption of above standards had no impact on net pos ition. 

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements - As of the report date, the GASB issued the fo llowing 
statements not yet implemented by the Station: 

• GASB Statement No. 87, leases, issued June 20 17. As a resu lt of the adoption of GASB 
Statement No. 95, the requirements of this Statement are now effective fo r reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 202 1. The objecti ve of this Statement is to better meet the info rmation 
needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases 
by governments. 

• GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a 
Cons/ruction Period, issued June 20 18. As a result of GASB Statement No. 95, the 
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beg inning after December 
15, 2020. The objectives of th is Statement are ( I) to enhance the relevance and comparability 
of in formation about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to 
s implify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. 

• GASB Statement No. 9 1, Conduit Debt Obligations, issued May 20 19. As a result of the 
adoption of GASS Statement No. 95, the requirements of this Statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 202 1. The primary objectives of this 
Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt ob ligations by issuers and 
eliminate diversity in practice associated with commitments extended by issuers, arrangements 
associated with conduit debt obligations, and related note disclosures. 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 202 1 AND 2020 

• GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, issued January 2020. As a resu lt of the adoption of 
GASH Statement No. 95, the requirements of th is Statement are effective fo r fiscal years 
beginn ing after June 15, 2022. The objectives of th is Statement are to enhance comparabi lity 
in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature 
by address ing practice issues that have been identifi ed during implementation and application 
of certain GASB Statements. 

• GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability 
Payment Arrangements, issued March 2020. The requirements of th is Statement are effect ive 
for fi scal years beginn ing after June 15, 2022. The pri mary objective of thi s Statement is to 
improve the financial reporting of address ing issues related to public-private and public-public 
partnership agreements. 

• GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, issued 
May 2020. The requi rements of this Statement are effective for fi scal years beginning after 
June 15, 2022. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for 
subscription-based info rmation technology arrangements for government end users. 

• GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section -157 Deferred Compensation Plans-an 
amendment of GASE Statements No. I-I and No. 8-1, and a supersession of GASE Statement 
No. 32, issued June 2020. The requirements of th is Statement are effective for fi scal years 
beginning after June 15, 202 1. The pri mary objectives of this Statement are to increase 
consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component units; mitigate 
costs assoc iated with the reporting of certa in defin ed contri bution pension plans; and enhance 
the relevance, consistency, and comparabili ty of the accounti ng and fi nancial reporting for 
Internal Revenue Code (!RC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans. 

The Station has not yet determined the effect these Statements wil l have on the Station·s financial 
statements and disc losures. 

Note 2 - Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For financial statement presentation purposes, cash in banks has been combined with the 
Uni vers ity's cash equi valents and temporary investments. 

Depository funds he ld in the name of the Un iversity are secured by a pool of securit ies with a value 
of at least 105% of the total value of monies on deposit at the depository bank. All co llateral, both 
specifi c and pooled, is held by the Federal Reserve Bank or by a des ignated trustee as agent for 
the pub lic depositories used by the University. 
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The University 's cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 202 1 and June 30, 2020 consisted of the 
fo llowing: 

2021 2020 

Carrying Amount (Cash and cash equivalents) $ 26,292,042 $ 5,79 1,497 

FDIC Insured $ 678,409 $ 804, 129 
Uninsured but collateralized by pools of securities pledged by 

the depository banks 82 1,090 2,70 1,909 
Uninsured but asse ts held in name of YSU not pledged as 

collateral elsewhere 26,609, 707 3,093, 179 
Bank Balance $ 28, I 09,206 $ 6,599,2 17 

The difference in carrying amount and bank balance is caused by items in transit and outstanding 
checks. Deposits held in safekeeping by a bank, as trustee or escrow agent, included in cash totaled 
$17,930 at June 30, 202 1 and $17,929 at June 30, 2020, which approximates market. These 
deposits, including interest on the investments, are retained in the trust for projects funded by bond 
proceeds and payment of principal and interest on outstanding indebtedness. The University's 
STAR Plus account depos its are federally insured and totaled $0 at June 30, 202 1 and $54, 129 at 
June 30, 2020. 

The Station ' s cash and cash equi va lents are included in these totals and were $ 1,904,033 and 
$ 1,660,924 at June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020, respectively. 

Cred it risk fo r deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank fa ilure, the Uni versity' s deposits may 
not be returned to the University. At June 30, 202 1 and June 30, 2020, al l unco llateralized or 
uninsured deposits of the University are exposed to credit risk. The Un iversity' s investment policy 
and asset al location guidelines fac i I itate the management and monitoring of credit risk. 

Note 3 - Investments 

The Uni versity's investment po licy authorizes the Un iversity to invest non-endowed and endowed 
University funds in compliance with provisions of the Ohio Revised Code including House Bill 
524, Section 3345.05 of the Ohio Revised Code, and all other applicable laws and regulations. 

In accordance with the Policies of the Board of Trustees of the Uni versity, investment types are 
not spec ifically limited but shall be made with care, ski ll, prudence, and diligence under the 
circumstances then prevai ling that a prudent person acting in like capacity and famil iar with such 
matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims. 
Furthermore, investments shall be managed for the use and benefit of the Uni versity in a divers ified 
portfo lio that foc uses, over time, on the preservation of cap ital , minimization of cost and risk, and 
maintenance of required levels of liquidity in the overall portfo lio to meet cash flow requirements. 
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The University utilizes an investment advisor and investment managers for endowment fund s. 
University endowment investments were $14,396,209 as of June 30, 2021 and $ I 0,915,812 as of 
June 30, 2020. The Station 's restricted investments represent WYSU-FM"s endowment fund , 
which includes endowment corpus and undistributed investment earnings. Investment income is 
allocated to the Station·s endowment fund on a monthly basis based on the va lue of WYSU-FM"s 
endowment fund in relation to the total value of the University's endowments. The fair value of 
the Station ·s endowment investments was $283,92 1 as of June 30, 202 1 and $221,222 as of June 
30, 2020. 

The Station's investments measured and repo11ed at fa ir value are class ified according to the 
fo llowing hierarchy: 

Level 1 - Investments reflect prices quoted in active markets. 

Leve l 2 - Investments refl ec t prices that are based on a similar observable asset either 
directly or indirectly, which may inc lude inputs in markets that are not considered to be 
active. 

Level 3 - Investments refl ect prices based upon unobservable sources. 

The categorization of investments within the hierarchy is based upon the pric ing transparency of 
the instrument and shou Id not be perceived as the particular investment's risk. 

Assets classified in Leve l I of the fair value hierarchy are valued directly from a primary external 
pricing vendor. Leve l 2 inputs are valued using a matrix pricing mode l. 

As of June 30, 202 1, the Station had the following investments measured at fair value: 

Pair Value Meas u rement 
Leve l I Le ve l 2 Level 3 Total 

U.S. Govern ment Ob liga tions $ $ 5,962 $ $ 5.962 
Corporate Bo nds 13,346 13.346 
U.S. C,ovcmment Bonds 3, 123 3. 123 
Bond Mutual r-unds 2.555 2.555 
Prc fen-cd Stock 2,271 2,271 
Commo n Stock 199,596 199,596 
Equity Mutual Funds 57,068 57.068 
To ta ls $ 259,2 19 $ 24,702 $ $ 283,921 
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As of June 30, 2020, the Station had the fo llowing investments measured at fair value: 

Fair Value Measurement 
Level I Level 2 Leve l 3 Total 

U.S. Gove rnment Obligatio ns $ $ 6, 194 $ $ 6, 194 
Corporate Bonds 25,44 1 25,44 1 
U.S. Government Bonds 3,982 3,982 
Bond Mu tua l Funds 3,761 3,761 
Preferred Stock 4.203 4,203 
Common Stock 145,564 145,564 
Equity Mutual Funds 32,077 32,077 
Tota ls $ 181,402 $ 39,820 $ $ 22 1,222 

As of June 30, 2021, the Station had the following investments and maturities using the segmented 
time distribution method: 

Investment Maturities (in Years) 
Investment Type Fair Value Less than I 1-5 6-10 More than IO 

U.S. Government Obligations $ 5,962 $ 5,962 $ $ $ 

Corporate Bonds 13,346 5,111 8,235 
U.S. Government Bonds 3. 123 3,123 

Bond Mutual Funds 2,555 2.555 
Preferred Stock 2,27 1 2,27 1 
Common Stock 199,596 199,596 
Equity Mutual Funds 57,068 57,068 
Totals $ 283 ,921 $ 275 ,686 $ 8,235 $ $ 

= ==== 

Al l callable stocks were assumed to mature in less than one year. 

As of June 30, 2020, the Station had the fol lowing investments and maturities using the 
segmented time distribution method : 

Investment Maturities (in Years) 
Investment Type Fair Value Less than I 1-5 6-10 More than 10 

U.S. Government Obligations $ 6, 194 $ $ 6, 194 $ $ 

Corporate Bonds 25,44 1 11 ,282 14, 159 
U.S. Government Bonds 3,982 1,991 1,99 1 

Bond Mutual Funds 3,761 3,76 1 
Preferred Stock 4,203 4,203 
Common Stock 145,564 145,564 
Equity Mutual Funds 32,077 32,077 
Totals $ 22 1,222 $ 196,887 $ 22,344 $ 1,991 $ 

All callable stocks were assumed to mature in less than one year. 
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As of June 30, 2021, investments had the following quality credit ratings: 

Investment Type Fair Value Aaa Aa A 
Corporate Bonds $ 13,346 $ 5,286 $ $ 8,060 $ 
U.S. Government Bonds 3,123 3,123 
Bond Mutual Funds 2,555 49 
Totals $ 19,024 $ 5,335 $ 3, 123 $ 8,060 $ 

As of June 30, 2020, investments had the following quality credit ratings: 

Investment Type Fair Value Aaa Aa A 
Corporate Bonds $ 25,441 s 5,602 $ 6,239 $ 13,600 $ 
U.S. Government Bonds 3,982 3,982 
Bond Mutual Funds 3,76 1 1,70 1 105 375 
Totals $ 33, 184 $ 7,303 $ 10,326 $ 13,975 $ 

Baa Unrated 
$ 

2,478 28 
2,478 $ 28 

Baa Unrated 
$ 

1,420 160 
1,420 $ 160 

interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adverse ly affect 
the fair value of an investment. The Un iversity's investment policy and asset allocation guidelines 
facilitate the management and monitoring of its exposure to fa ir value losses arising from 
increasing interest rates. 

Credit Risk - Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not 
fulfill its obligations. Cred it quali ty , as commonly expressed in terms of credit ratings issued by 
nationa lly recognized statistical rating organizations such as Moody's Investors Services, Standard 
& Poor·s or Fitch rat ing prov ides a current depiction of potential variable cash flows and credit 
risk. The University' s investment policy and asset allocation guidelines contain prov isions to 
manage credit risk. 

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the 
counterpa1ty to a transaction, the Un iversity will not be able to recover the value of investments 
or collateral securities that are in the possess ion of an outside party. Investments that are both 
unregistered and uninsured are exposed to custodia l credit risk if investments are held by the 
counterparty or are held by the counterparty' s trust department or agent but not in the name of the 
University. At June 30, 202 1 and 2020, the University had no exposure to custodial credit risk. 
The University does not address custodial credit risk in its investment policy and asset allocation 
guidelines. 

Concentration of Credit Risk - Concentration of credit ri sk is the risk o f loss attributed to the 
magnitude of investment in a single issuer. As of June 30, 202 1, $5,647,949 or 7% of the 
University 's po1tfo lio was held in an intermediate bond fund compared to $5,577,9 10 or 8% at 
June 30, 2020. 
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Foreign Currency Risk - Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will 
adversely affect the fair value of an investment or deposit. At June 30; 202 1 and 2020, the 
University had no materia l exposure to foreign currency risk. The Univers ity does not address 
foreign currency risk in its investment policy and asset allocation guidelines. 

Note 4 - Capital Assets 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 202 1 was as fo llows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance 

Depreciable assets: 
Antenna and tower $ 600,660 $ $ 47,68 1 $ 552,979 
Studio and broadcast equipment 28 1.73 1 148,699 133,032 

Totul cost 882,39 1 196,380 686,01 1 
Less: Accumulated dt:preciation 729, 155 3 1.824 196.380 564,599 

Capital assets. net $ 153,236 $ (3 1.824) $ $ 12 1.4 12 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as fo llows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance 

Depreciable assets: 
Antenna and tower $ 5 12,606 $ 88.054 $ $ 600,660 
Studio and broadcast equipment 269.421 12.3 10 28 1,731 

Total cost 782.027 I 00,364 882,391 
Less: Accumulated depreciat ion 690.758 38,397 729, 155 

Capital assets, net $ 9 1,269 $ 61,967 $ $ 153,236 

Note 5 - Compensated Absences 

Compensated Absences at June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020 were as follows: 

2021 2020 
Beginning Balance $ 67,069 $ 77,670 

Additions 
Reductions 22,549 10,60 1 

Ending Balance 44,520 67,069 
Less: current portion 6,272 5,618 
Compensated Absences, noncurrent portion $ 38,248 $ 61,451 
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Note 6 - Employee Benefit Plans 

Plan Descriptions 
The Station participates in the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS), statewide. 
cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit public employee retirement system governed by 
the Ohio Revised Code (ORC) that covers all employees of the Station. The system has multiple 
retirement plan options ava ilable to its members. with three options. The system prov ides 
retirement, survivor, and di sability benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. The system 
also provides post-employment health care benefits (including Medicare B premiums) to retirees 
and beneficiaries who elect to receive those benefits. 

The retirement system issues a publicly available financial report that inc ludes financial statements 
and required supplementary in fo rmation fo r the pension and post-employment health care plans. 
The report may be obtained by contacting: 

Ohio Public Employees Retirement System 
277 East Town Street 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 
(800) 222-7377 
w,, w.opers.org 

Contributions 
State retirement law requires contributions by covered employees and their employers, and 
Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code (ORC) limits the maximum rate of contributions. The 
retirement board of the system sets contributions rates within the allowable limits. The adequacy 
of employer contribution rates is determined annually by actuarial valuation using the entry age 
normal cost method. Under these provisions. the Station ·s contribut ion is expected to finance the 
costs of bene fits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance a 
portion of the unfunded accrued li ability. 

Member contributions are set at the maximums authorized by the ORC. The plan' s 2021 and 2020 
employer and member contribution rates on covered payroll to each system are: 

OPERS-Sta td Local 

Pens ion 
14.0% 

Employer Contribution Rate 
Post-

Retirement Death 
Healthcare Benefits Medicare B 

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 
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The required and actual contributions to the plans are: 

OPERS $ 

Benefits Provided 

OPERS 

2021 

Pension 

46, 172 

OPEB 
$ 

2020 

Pens ion 

57,33 1 
OPEB 

Plan benefits are establ ished under Chapter 145 of the ORC, as amended by Substitute Senate Bill 
343 in 20 12. The requirements to retire depends on years of service (5 to 30 years) and from 
attaining the age of 48 to 62, depending on when the employee became a member. Members 
retiring before age 65 with less than 30 years' service credit receive a percentage reduction in 
benefit, except for public safety and law enforcement participants. Member retirement benefits 
are calculated on a fo rmula that considers years of service (5-30 years), age (48-62 years) and final 
average sa lary, using a factor ranging from I percent to 2.5 percent. 

A plan member who becomes di sabled before age 60 or at any age, depending on when the member 
entered the plan, and has completed 60 contributing months is eligible for a disability benefit. 

A death benefit or $500 - $2,500 is determined by the number of years of service credit of the 
retiree. Benefits may transfer to a beneficiary upon death with 1.5 years of service credits with the 
plan obtained within the last 2.5 years, except for law enfo rcement and pub I ic safety personnel 
who are eligible immediately upon employment. 

Benefit terms provide for annual cost-of-living adjustments to each employee's retirement 
allowance subsequent to the ernployee·s retirement date. The annual adjustment, if applicable, is 
3 percent, or an amount based on the average percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index, 
capped at 3 percent. 

Net Pension Liability, Deferrals, and Pension Expense 
At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Station reported a liability for its propo11ionate share of the net 
pension liability of OPERS . For June 30, 202 1, the net pension liability was measured as of 
December 31 , 2020. For June 30, 2020, the net pension liability was measured as of December 3 1, 
20 19. The total pension li ab ility used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of those dates. The University's propo11ion of the net pension liability was 
based on a projection of its long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating reporting units, actuarially determined. At June 30, 
202 1 and 2020, the University's proportionate share of the net pension liability was 0.223% and 
0.245%, respectively. The amount the University allocated to the Station is based on total 
retirement contributions for the Station' s employees as a percentage of the total retirement 
contributions for the Uni versity. At June 30, 202 1 and 2020, the Station' s allocation of the 
University's proportion was 1.08% and 1.23%, respectively. 
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Measureme nt . Net Pens ion Liability 

Date 202 I 2020 
December 3 1 $ 349,841 $ 588,367 

Propo11ionate Share 
202 1 2020 

0.0024 13% 0.003009% 

Change , 

2020-2 1 
-0.000596% 

Change 

2019-20 
-0.000 195% 

For the years ended June 30, 202 1 and 2020, the Station recognized pension expense of ($ 111 , 158) 
and $68,393, respectively. These expenses are the result o f changes in the deferred 
outflows/ inflows and liabilities related to pension. Due to the pension asset income pickup in fi scal 
year 202 1, Program information expenses and Traffic and continuity expenses included in Program 
Services expenses as well as Underwriting expenses included in Support Services expenses are all 
presenting as negati ve expenses on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position. The Station has no contro l over the factors affecting these changes. At June 30, 2021 and 
2020, the Station reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions from the fo llowing sources: 

2021 2020 
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred 

Ou tflows of Inflows of Outflows of In flows of 
Resources Resources Resources Resources 

Differences between expected a nd actua l $ 145 $ 16,786 $ 219 $ 9,280 
experience 

Changes o fass urnptions 587 32.603 
Net d iflc re ncc bet ween projected and actual 

earn ings on pe ns ion plan inves tments 14 1,465 119.844 
Cha nges in prop onion and differences between 

Univers ity contribu t ions and propo11ionatc 
s hare of contributions 204 37,725 213 22,635 

Univers ity contribut ions s ubseq ue nt 
to the meas ure ment date 27,761 32,64 1 

Tota ls $ 28,697 $ 195,976 $ 65,676 $ 151,759 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources/ (deferred inflows of resources) related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as fo llows: 

Year Ended June 30 /\mount 
2022 $ (86,843) 
2023 (30,479) 
2024 (57,837) 

2025 ( 19,460) 
2026 ( 174) 

Thercatier (247) 
Totals $ ( 195,040) 

In addition, the contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be included as a reduction 
of the net pension liability in the next year. 
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Net OPEB Liabilitvl(Asset), Deferrals, and OPEB Expense 
At June 30, 202 1, the Station reported an (asset) for its proportionate share of the net OPES (asset) 
of OPERS. For June 30, 202 1, the net OPES (asset) was measured as of December 3 1, 2020. For 
June 30, 2020, the net OPES liability was measured as of December 31, 20 19. The total OPES 
liability/(asset) used to calculate the net OPES liability/(asset) was determined by an actuarial 
valuation dated December 3 1, 20 19 and 20 18, respecti vely, rol led forward to the measurement 
date by incorporating the expected value of health care cost accruals, the actual health care 
payments, and interest accruals during the year for the defined benefit health care plans. 

Typically, the Station's proportion of the net OPEB liability/(asset) would be based on a projection 
of its long-term share o f contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected contributions of 
all participating reporting units, actuarial ly determined, except as noted below. 

For plan years ending December 3 1, 2020 and 20 19, OPERS did not allocate employer 
contributions to the OPEB plan. Therefo re, OPERS' calculation of the employers' proportionate 
share is based on total contri butions to the plan for both pension and OPES. 

At June 30, 202 1 and 2020, the University's proportionate share of the net OPEB liabil ity (asset) 
was 0.222% and 0.242%, respective ly. The amount the Uni versity allocated to the Station is based 
on total retirement contributions for the Station's employees as a percentage of the total retirement 
contributions fo r the University. !\t June 30, 202 1 and 2020, the Station·s allocation of the 
University's proportion was 1.08% and 1.23%, respectively. 

Plan 
OPERS 

Meas urement 
Date 

Dl:ccmber 3 1 

Net OPEB Liability (Asset) 
2021 2020 

$ (42,75 1) $ 41 1,635 

Proportionate Share 
2021 2020 

0.0003 10% 0.002980% 

Change 
2020-21 

-0.002670% 

Change 
2019-20 

0.000655% 

For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Station recognized OPES expense of ($327,940) 
and $223 ,535, respectively.These expenses are the result of changes in the deferred 
outflows/inflows and liabilities/assets related to OPEB. Due to the pension asset income pickup in 
fiscal year 202 1, Program info rmation expenses and Traffic and continuity expenses included in 
Program Services expenses as we ll as Underwriting expenses included in Support Services 
expenses are all presenting as negative expenses on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position. The Station has no control over the factors affecting these changes. At 
June 30, 202 1 and 2020, the Station reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to OPEB from the fo llowing sources. 
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202 1 2020 
De ferred Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows o f Outflows of 
Resources Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual $ $ 38,580 $ 11 
experience 

Changes of assumptio ns 21,0 16 69.267 65, 155 
Net d ifference betwee n p rojected and actual 

earnings o n O PEB inves tmen ts 22.769 
Chan ges in proportio n and d ifferences between 

Univers ity co ntributions a nd pro port io nate 
s hare of co ntribu tions 2 23,044 77 

Un ivers ity co nt ribu tions s ubseq uent 
to the meas urement date 

Totals $ 2 1,018 $ 153,660 $ 65,243 

Deferred 
In flows o f 
Resources 
$ 37,644 

20,960 

12,835 

$ 7 1,439 

Amounts repo1ted as deferred outflows of resources/ (deferred inflows of resources) related to 
OPEB wil l be recognized in OPEB expense as fo llows: 

Year Ended Ju ne 30 Amount 
2022 s (73. 104) 
2023 (46.96 1) 
2024 (9.894) 
2025 (2.683) 
2026 

T hereafic r 
Tota ls s ( 132.642) 

In addition, if applicable, the contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be included 
as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the next year. 
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Actuarial Assumptions 
The total pensi0n liabi lity and OPEB liabi li ty is based on the results of an actuarial valuation and 
were determined using the fo llowing actuarial assumptions for the Station's current year. 

OPERS 
Valuation date - Pens ion December 3 I. 2020 
Valuation date - OPEB December 3 1, 2019 
Actuaria l cost method Indiv idua l entry age 
Cost of liv in _g .50% - 3.00% 
Salary increases , including 3.25% - 10.75% 

inllatio n 
ln llatio n 3.25% 
Investment rate of 7.20%, ne t of in ves tment expense. 

return - Pens ion including inllation 
Investment rate o f 6.00%, ne t o f inves tment expense. 

return - O PEB inc luding inllation 
I lealth care cost tre nd rates 8.5% initial, 3.50% ult imate in 2035 
Experience s tudy d ate Period of5 years ended Decembe r 3 1, 20 15 
Monality basis RP-20 14 Healthy Annu itan t 

Mon a lity Table 

The fo llowing are actuarial assumptions for the University 's prior year: 
OPERS 

Valuat ion date - Pens ion December 3 I. 2019 
Valuation date - OPEB December 3 I. 2018 
/\ctuarial cost method Indiv idua l entry age 
Cost of liv ing 1.40% - 3.00% 
Sa lary in creases, inc luding 3.25% - 10.75% 

inllat io n 
lnllatio n 3.25% 
Investmen t rate o f 7.20%, net o f inves tme nt expense, 

return - Pens ion inc luding inllation 
Inves tment rate of 6.00%, net o f inves tme nt expense. 

return - OPEB including inllation 
Health care cost tre nd rates 10.5% initia l, 3.50% ultimate in 2030 
Exoerience study d ate Period of 5 years ended Dece mber 31.2015 
Monality basis RP-2014 Healthy A nnuitant 

M onality Table 
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Pension Discount Rate 
The . projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that em ployee 
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be 
made at contractually required rates fo r all plans. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan· s 
fiduciary net pos ition was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments 
for current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 
total pension li abi lity. The d iscount rates used to measure the total pension liability for OPERS 
were 7.20 percent for the plan years ended December 3 1, 2020 and 20 19, respective ly. 

OPEB Discount Rate 
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee 
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contri butions wi ll be 
made at contractually required rates for all plans. Plans that project fiduciary net position to be 
insufficient to make all projected future benefit payments for current active and inacti ve employees 
used a blended discount rate between the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments 
and a 20-year munic ipal bond rate applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total OPES liability/(asset). 

OPERS OPEB Discount Rate - The discount rates used to measure the total OPES 
liabilities/(assets) were 6.00 percent and 3. 16 percent for the plan years ended December 31 , 2020 
and 2019, respecti ve ly. At December 3 1, 2020, the fiduciary net position and future contributions 
were sufficient to finance health care costs through the year 2 120. As a result, the actuarial 
assumed long-term expected rate of return on health care investments was applied to projected 
costs through the year 2 120, the duration of the projection period through which projected health 
care payment are full y funded. 

At December 3 1, 2019, the plan ' s fiduciary net position was projected to become insufficient to 
make all projected future benefit payments of 6.00 percent and the Fidelity 20-year Municipal 
General Obligation AA Index rate of 2.75 percent at December 3 1.2019. The long-term expected 
rate of return on health care investments was applied to projected costs through the year 2034, and 
the municipal bond rate was applied to all health care costs after that date. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan and OPES plan investments was determined 
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset 
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting 
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by add ing 
expected inflation. OPERS has two different portfolios of investment, a defined benefit portfolio 
for pension and health care portfolio for OPES. As a result, there are different target allocations 
and long-term expected real rates of return disc losed for each portfolio. The target allocation and 
best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the 
following table as of the dates listed below: 
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OPERSasof 12/3 1/20 

Pension Po rt folio Health Care Port fo lio 
Lo ng-T erm Long-Term 

Investment Target expected Real T arget expected Real 
Catego ry A llocat ion Rate o f Return Allocation Rate o f Ret urn 

Fixed income 25 .0% I 32% 3-l .0% 1.07% 
Do mestic Equities 21 .0% 5.64% 25 .0% 5 .64% 
Real Estate 10 .0% 5.39% 0.0% 0 00% 
Private Equity 12.0°1., I 0.42% 0.0% 0 .00% 
Int e rn at io nal Equit y 23 .0% 7 36% 25 .0% 7.36% 
RE IT s 0 .0% 0 00% 7.0% 6.48% 
Ot her lnvesmcnts 9 .0% 4 75% 9.0% 4 02% 

100.0% 100.0% 

OPE RS as o r 12/3 I / I 9 

Pension Port folio Health Care Port fo lio 
Long-Term Long-Term 

Investment Target expected Real Target expected Real 
Cat ego I)· Allocatio n Rat e o f Return Allocation Rate of Ret urn 

Fixed income 25.0% 1.83% 36.0% 1.53% 
Do nu.:st it.: Fq11i1 ics 19.0% 5.75% 2 1.0% 5.75% 
R<!al Estate 10.0% 5.20% 0.0% 0 .00% 
Private Equil) 12.0 '¼, 10.70% 0.0% 0 .00% 
lnt ernati11nal Fquity 2 1.0% 7.66% 23.0% 7.66% 
RE ITs 0 .0% 0.00% 6.0% 5.69% 
Oth...:r l nvcs111cnts 13.0% 4.98% 14.0% -l .90% 

100.0% 100.0% 

Sensitivity ofthe 11et pension liability to changes in the discount rate 
The fo llowing presents the net pension liabil ity of the Station calculated using the discount rate 
listed below, as well as what the Station 's net pension liab ility would be if it were ca lculated using 
a discount rate that is 1.00 percentage-point lower or 1.00 percentage-point higher than the current 
rate. 

Plan 
OPERS 

Plan 
OPERS 

1% Decrease 

6.20% $ 679 

1% Decrease 

6.20% $ 978 

202 1 ($ in thousands) 

Current Discount Rate 

7.20% $ 350 

2020 ($ int housands) 

Current Dis count Rate 

7 .20% $ 588 

1% Increase 

8.20% $ 77 

1% Increase 

8.20% $ 238 

Sensitivity oft/,e net OPEB liahility(asset) to changes in the discount rate 
The following presents the net OPES liability/(asset) of the Station, calculated using the discount 
rate listed below, as well as what the Station's net OPEB liability/(asset) would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1.00 percentage point lower or 1.00 percentage point higher 
than the current rate: 
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202 1 ($ in thousands) 

Plan 1% Decrease Cu1Tent Discount Rate 1% Increase 
OPERS 2 .16% S ( 11 ) 3.16% $ (43) 4.16% S (69) 

2020 ($ in thousands) 
Plan 1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase 
OPERS 2. 16% $ 539 3. 16% $4 12 4. 16% $3 IO 

Sensitivitv o[the net OPEB liabilitvl(asset) to changes in the health care cost trend rate 
The fo llowing presents the net OPEB liabi lity of the Station, calculated using the healthcare cost 
trend rate listed below, as well as what the Station·s net OPEB liability/(asset) would be if it were 
calcu lated using a hea lth care cost trend rate that is 1.00 percentage point lower or 1.00 percentage 
point higher than the current rate: 

Plan 
OPERS 

Plan 
O PERS 

1% Decrease 
($44 ) 

1% Decrease 
S399 

202 1 ($ in thousands) 

Current T rend Rate 
($43) 

2020 ($ in thousands) 
Current Trend Rate 

$41 2 

Pension plan and OPEB plan fiduciarv net position 

1% Increase 
($42) 

1% Increase 
$424 

Detai led in formation about the pens ion plan' s fiduciary net pos ition is avai lable in the separately 
issued OPERS financia l report. 

Benefit changes 
Effective in 2022, OPERS will replace the current self- insured group plan with a marketplace 
concept fo r pre-Medicare retirees. 

Assumption changes 
During the measurement period ended December 3 1, 2020, certain assumption changes were made 
by the plan. The OPERS OPEB discount rate was increased from 3. 16 percent to 6.00 percent, 
which impacted the annual actuarial valuation for OPEB prepared as of December 31 , 2020. The 
OPERS OPEB discount rate was reduced from 3.96 percent to 3. 16 percent, which impacted the 
annual actuarial valuation for OPEB prepared as of December 3 1, 20 19. 

Payable to the Pension Plan and OPEB Plan 
The Station reported a payable of $7, 75 I and $4,053 for the outstanding amount of contributions 
to the OPERS pension plan required for the years ended June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020, 
respective ly. 
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Defined Contribution Pension Plan 
The Alternative Retirement Plan (ARP) is a defined contribution pension plan, under IRS Section 
40 I (a), and established by Ohio Amended Substitute House Bill 586 (ORC 3305.02) on March 3 1, 
1997, for public institutions of higher education. The University' s Board o f Trustees adopted the 
University' s plan on December I I, 1998. Full-time employees are eligible to choose a provider, 
in lieu of OPERS, from the list of nine providers currently approved by the Ohio Department of 
Insurance and who hold agreements with the University. Employee and employer contributions 
equal to those required by OPERS are required for the ARP, less any amounts required to be 
remitted to the state retirement system in which the employee would otherwise have been enrolled. 

Eligible employees have 120 days from their date of hire to make an irrevocable election to 
participate in the ARP. Under this plan, employees who would have otherwise been required to 
be in OPERS, and who elect to participate in the ARP, must contribute the employee' s share of 
retirement contributions to one of nine private providers approved by the Oh io Depa11ment of 
Insurance. The legislation mandates that the em ployer must contribute an amount to the state 
retirement system to wh ich the employee would have otherwise belonged, based on an independent 
actuari al study commiss ioned by the Ohio Retirement Study Counci l and submitted to the Ohio 
Department of Higher Education. That amount is 2.44 percent for OPERS lor the years ended 
June 30, 202 1 and 2020. If the employee was hired on or after August 2005, the employer 
contributes 6.00 percent. The employer also contributes what wo uld have been the employer' s 
contribution under OPERS, less the aforementioned percentages, to the private provider se lected 
by the employee. The Uni versity plan provides these employees with immediate plan vesting. 
The ARP does not provide disabil ity benefits, survivor benefits, or postretirement health care. 
Benefits are entirely dependent on the sum of contributions and investment returns earned by each 
participant's choice of investment options. OPERS also offers a defined contribution plan and a 
combined plan with features of both a defined contribution plan and a defined benefit plan. There 
were no contributions made to the ARP for the fi sca l years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. 
Contributions were equal to the required contributions for each year. 

Note 7 - Related Party 

Youngstown State University Foundation is a legally separate nonprofit organization exempt from 
federal income tax and classified as a public charity. The Foundation is devoted to the support, 
expansion, and development of educational programs at the University that are useful and 
beneficial to the students and the community. During fi scal year 2015, the Univers ity entered into 
a deve lopment services agreement with the Foundation, wherein the Foundation raises and 
maintains donations on behalfofthe University. The Foundation remits all related funds received 
on a monthly bas is. 

The operations of WYSU-FM are supported by general appropriations from the University. The 
University' s support allocation totaled $324, 11 2 and $409,538 in d irect support fo r fi scal years 
202 1 and 2020, respectively, and $84,054 and $268,849 in indirect administrative support and 
donated faci I ities. 
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Note 8- Risk Management 

WYSU-FM is included in the Univers ity's insurance programs. The University is exposed to 
various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Univers ity has joined with other state­
assisted un iversit ies in Ohio to form an insurance pool for the acqu isition of commercial property 
and casualty insurance. The Un iversity pays annual premiums to the pool for its property and 
casualty insurance coverage based on its percentage of the tota l insurance value to the pool. Future 
contributions will be adjusted based upon each Univers ity's loss history. The Un iversity had no 
significant reductions in coverage from the prior year. Insurance settlements have not exceeded 
insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal years. 

Note 9 - COVID-19 Pandemic 

On March 11 , 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a respiratory disease 
caused by a new coronavirus a pandemic. now known as COYID- 19. In response to the COYI0-
19 pandemic, governments have taken preventative or protective actions, such as temporary 
closures of non-essential businesses and "shelter-at-home" guidelines for individuals. As a result, 
the global economy has been negatively affected, and the Station 's operations were also impacted. 
Due to the '·shelter-at-home" guidelines during April and May 2020, the Station expanded its 
remote operations capabilities. Four remote studios were purchased and were integrated into the 
Station ' s normal operations. These units enable staff to broadcast remotely in the event they are 
not permitted on campus or cannot reach the stud ios fo r any reason. The Station also had 
fundraising and live events cancelled or temporarily postponed until the .. shelter-at-home'· 
guidelines were reduced or removed, which resulted in lost revenues for the Station for the years 
ended June 30, 202 t and June 30, 2020. In response, the Station instituted measures to reduce 
personnel expenses , including a temporary layoff, furloughs, and pay reductions. 

To offset the financ ial impact to students, the losses incurred by the University due to the 
disruption caused by COYID-19 and to defray COYI0-19 expenses, the Un iversity received grants 
and other relief primari ly authorized through the Coronavirus Aid, Re lief, and Economics Security 
(CARES) Act, the Coronavirus Relief & Recovery Supplemental Appropriations Act (C RRSAA), 
and the American Rescue Plan Act of 202 1. The total amount awarded to the Uni vers ity as of June 
30, 202 I was $64.6 mill ion detailed as fo llows: 
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Funding Agency/ Fund 

Department of Educatio n - Education Stab ilization Fund 

COVJD-19 Hig her Education Emergency Re lief Fund - Student Aid 

COVID-19 Higher Education Fmergency R.:licfFund - Institu tional Portion 

United States Departmen t ofTreasury 

Corona vims Re lief Fund (throug h the Ohio Dept. of Higher Educa tion) 

Corporation Fo r Public Broadcasting 

Emergency Stabilization Fund 

Total A wards 

Award 

$ 25,7 18,908 

32,478,036 

6,22 1,960 

223,564 

$ 64,642,468 

Revenue, renected as federal appropri ations in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 
in Net Position for the University, totaled $24,976,068 in fi scal year 202 1 compared to $6,063,592 
in fiscal yea r 2020. The Station 's federa l appropriations are included in the Univers ity tota ls and 
were $ 166,757 in fiscal year 202 1 compared to $75,000 in fi scal year 2020. 

Expenses for the University totaled $22,094,262 in fiscal year 2021 compared to $4,298,543 in 
fi scal year 2020 and included $7,176,462 and $3,200,000 in student aid, respectfully. The Station ' s 
expenses are included in the University tota ls and were $3,657 in fiscal year 202 1 compared to 
$36,372 in fi scal year 2020. 

Transfers to unrestricted funds during fi sca l year 202 1 totaled $ 10,852,640 and included 
$2,820,743 to reimburse the University for lost revenues and e ligible expenses incurred during 
fiscal year 2020 and $8,031 ,897 for lost revenues during fi scal year 202 1 compared to $2,844,279 
in fiscal year 2020. These funds were designated for COVID-1 9 projects and to fulfi ll the fiscal 
year 2022 Operating Budget plan at the University. 

The severity of the continued impact due to COVID-19 on the University ' s financial condition, 
results of operations or cash nows will depend on a number of factors, including, but not limited 
to, the duration and severity of the pandemic and the extent and severity of the impact on the 
Univers ity's community, all of which are unce1tai n and cannot be predicted. 
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Schedule of the Station's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
Plan Years Ended 2014 to 2020 

Plan Year 

Stat io n's 
p rop ortion o f 

t he net p ens io n 
liab ilitv (asset ) 

Statio n's 

p roportio nate 
s hare o ft he net 
pens io n liabilit y 

(asset ) 
Stal ion's covered 

pay roll 

Ohio Public Employees Ret irement System (O PERS) 
2020 0.00241 3% $ 349.841 $ 362.906 

2019 0 .003009% $ 588.367 $ 450.235 
20 18 0.003204% s 873.885 s 4 73.020 
20 17 0.003238% s 503.458 $ 464.796 
201 6 0.003304% $ 748.429 $ 46 1.655 
2015 0.003450% $ 595.4 14 $ 462. 132 
2014 0 .003470% s 41 6.9 13 $ 445. 11 2 

The plan year ends on December 31 for OPERS. 

4 1 

Stat ion's 
prop on ionate 

s hare of the 
collect i,·c net 

p ens io n liab ilit) 
as a p ercentage o f 

t he employer's 
covered p av roll 

96.40% 
130.68% 
184.74% 
108.32% 
162. 12% 
128.84% 
93.66% 

P Ian fiduciary net 
p os it ion as a 

pcrcemagc o ft he 

total p ens io n 
liabilit v 

82.44% 

82.44% 
78.00% 
79.00% 
80.00% 

80.00% 
84.00% 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Schedules of the Station's Pension Contributions 

Fiscal Year 

Statuto rily 
required 

cont ribut ion 

Contributions in 
relation to the 

s tatutorily 
required 

contributions 

Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) 
2021 $ 46. 172 $ 46. 172 
2020 $ 57.33 1 $ 57.33 1 
20 19 $ 65.665 $ 65.665 
20 18 $ 63.928 $ 63.928 
20 17 $ 57.269 $ 57.269 
20 16 $ 55.9 12 $ 55.9 12 
20 15 $ 55.579 $ 55.579 

Changes of benej,t terms 

Annual 
cont ribution 
dcficienc, 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Stat ion's covered 

p ay ro ll 

$ 329.80 I 
$ 409.509 
$ 472.860 
$ 4 74.256 
$ 459.488 
$ 465.06 1 
$ 46 1.406 

There were no changes in benefit terms affecting the OPERS plan. 

Changes of assumptions 

Conribut ions 
recognized by the 
pension plan in 

re lat ion to the 
s tatutorily o r 

contractually required 
employer contribution 

as a percent of the 
emp loyer's covered 

pay roll 

14 .00% 
14.00% 
13 .89% 
13.48% 
12.47% 
12.02% 
12.05% 

OPE RS - During the plan year ended December 31, 2018, the discount rate was reduced from 
7.5% to 7.2%. During the plan year ended December 3 1, 20 16, there were changes to several 
assumptions for OPERS. The wage inflation dropped from 3.75% to 3.25%. The projected salary 
increase range changed from 4.25%-10.05% to 3.25%- 10.75%. The mortality tables used changed 
from RP-2000 to RP-2014. 
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Schedules of the Station's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) 
Plan Years Ended 2017 to 2020 

Stat ions's 

p ro p o rtio n of 
the.: ne t OPEH 

Station's 

prop ort ionate 

share.: of the net 
O PEB liab ility 

Plan Year liabilit) (asset) (asset ) 
Stat ion's covt!n:d 

p ay roll 
Ohio Public Employees Retirement S ystem (OPERS) 

2020 0 .0003 10% $ (42.75 1) $ 

20 19 
20 18 
20 17 

0.002980% 
0.002325% 
0.003 114% 

$ 4 11.635 
S 303. 125 
$ 338.157 

$ 

s 
$ 

The plan year ends on December 31 for OPERS. 

43 

362.906 
450.235 
473.020 
464.796 

Station's 

p roport ionatt! 

shan: oft he 
co llect ive.: net 

O P EB liabilit) as 

a percc.:ntagc: of 
the employer's 

covcrt!d payroll 

11.78% 
9 1.43% 
64.09% 
72.76% 

P Ian fiduciary 

nct posit ion as a 
p c rccntagc o f t hc 

tota l OPEB 

liabilit) (ass.:t J 

47.80% 
47.80% 
65.40% 
60.70% 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Schedules of the Station's OPEB Contributions 

Statuto rily 

required 

Contributions in 

re lation to the 

s tatuto rily 

required A nnual contribution 

Fiscal Year contribution contribut ions deficiency 

Ohio Puhlic Employees Retirement System (OPERS) 
202 1 $ $ $ -

2020 $ $ $ -

2019 $ $ $ 
2018 $ 2.468 $ 2.-168 $ 

Changes of benefit terms 

Station's 

covered p ayroll 

$ 329.801 
$ 409.509 
$ 472.860 

474.256 

Co nribut ions 

recognized by the 

OPEB p lan in rdatio n 

10 the statutorily or 

co m ract ually required 

employer contribution 

as a percent o f the 

emp layer's covered 

p ayroll 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.52% 

There were no sign ificant changes in benc lit terms affecting the OPERS plan for the plan year 
ended December 3 1, 2020. 

Changes of assumptions 
OPERS - During the plan year ended December 3 1, 2020, there were changes to several 
assumptions for OPERS. The health care cost trend rates decreased from I 0.5% initial and 3.5% 
ultimate to 8.5% initial and 3.5% ultimate. The discount rate increased from 3.16% to 6.00%. 

During the plan year ended December 31, 20 19, there were changes to several assumptions for 
OPERS. The hea lth care cost trend rates decreased from I 0.0% initial and 3.25% ultimate to I 0.5% 
initial and 3.5% ultimate. The discount rate was reduced from 3.96% to 3. 16%. 
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SCHEDULE OF NONFEDERAL FINANCIAL SUPPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Direct Income 

Indirect Administrative Support 

In-Kind Contributions of Services and Other Assets 

Total Nonfederal Financial Support 

45 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of 
Fi_nancial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To Management and the Board of Trustees 
WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of WYSU-FM Youngstown State University 
Rad io (the "Station"), a department of Youngstown State University, which comprise the basic statement of net 
position as of June 30, 2021 and the related basic statements of revenue, expenses and changes in net position 
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements and have issued our 
report thereon dated November 29, 2021 . 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Station's internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Station's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Station's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Station's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected , on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Station's financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements , noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financia l statements. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and, 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance 
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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To Management and the Board of Trustees 
WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Station's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Station's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

November 29, 2021 
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